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March 3, 2000

Dear Fellow Shareowner:

I’m pleased to present you with our annual report on Form 10-K for 1999. As you will see, 1999 was
truly a year of transformation for U S WEST:

• we continued converting your company into a true growth vehicle with dramatic gains in our data,
wireless and Internet businesses;

• we enriched the lives of customers by offering new privacy products and by extending our bundling
packages; and

• we completed another piece of the puzzle by linking with Qwest to add a national backbone and
international presence.

However, amid all this change, we kept pace with your primary expectation: maintaining a strong total
shareowner return, ending the year ranked second among our peers – just a single percentage point from
first. Over the last three years, our 157 percent total return is tops in our peer group. And we have
quadrupled our market capitalization in the last five years to more than $36 billion as of the end of 1999.

Let me just give you a flavor of some of our other 1999 successes.

We honed our vision around innovation, integration and the Internet, and we are implementing that
vision in market-leading ways:

• We were the only RBOC to reach the milestone we set in early 1999 by delivering our high-speed
DSL data product, MegaBit, to more than 110,000 customers. We were by far the most densely
penetrated of any DSL provider, with more than 10 percent of qualified, on-line households now
subscribing.

• We grew our Internet access accounts by two-and-a-half times to 380,000.

• Our !NTERPRISE data division grew revenues by 34 percent to $1.7 billion.

• We surpassed half-a-million PCS wireless subscribers in January, up more than 150 percent over the
last year, generating $236 million in revenues in the process.

• We added new vertical services including No Solicitation and Privacy Plus – now in some 38 markets
with more than a quarter-million subscribers.

• U S WEST Dex grew its e-commerce revenues by 80 percent.

• Our robust Choice TV video service grew to more than 16,000 subscribers in Phoenix. That service
is helping us re-define high-speed integration in a way that has put us well ahead of every other
broadband provider. It’s also helping us improve customer satisfaction ratings and retention.

Perhaps most critically this year, we really started evolving our idea of the ‘‘bundle.’’ Our ‘‘Custom
Choice’’ offering doubled in popularity in 1999 and now has more than 1.3 million subscribers, adding
more than $7 per month in revenue per customer. Sixty percent of PCS subscribers now use one of the
integrated single-number or single bill features, driving lower churn rates. In the second half of 1999, we
started adding Internet access to Custom Choice, with nearly 20 percent of customers opting for that. We
were first to market with a wireline, wireless and a web bundle for customers called the ‘‘Total Package.’’ It
will be deployed regionwide this quarter and generates an average up-sell of $50 per month.

All these product innovations helped us achieve solid financial performance in 1999, with revenue
growth of 6.1 percent, EBITDA growth of 8.3 percent and EPS growth of 6.3 percent.



In 2000, you’ll see us continue expanding our suite of next-generation data, wireless, video and custom
calling services. By the end of this year, we expect to have:

• 250,000 broadband subscribers;

• 120,000 new U S WEST.net subscribers, for a total of 500,000;

• 280,000 additional Advanced PCS users, for a total of 750,000;

And we plan to do this and still deliver on aggressive financial targets: revenue growth in the 6 percent
range; EBITDA growth of 6-8 percent; and EPS growth in the mid-single digits.

Finally, I want to assure you that our impending merger with Qwest is well on track to completing by
mid-year. Though I have said I will not be joining the executive team of the new Qwest when the merger
closes later this year, until then I will remain chief executive of U S WEST.

After your shareowner approval of that merger in November, we received positive signs from the FCC
and expect their approval at any time. As I write this, one of our states has given us the nod and we expect
others to follow soon.

Nearly everyone agrees that this ‘‘vertical’’ merger makes great sense. I’m certain that it will be viewed
as a watershed event in the telecommunications industry for years to come. And the year 2000 will be
viewed as a time when one of the most innovative local, data and wireless players – U S WEST – linked
with one of the boldest of the Internet and fiber players – Qwest – to form a true powerhouse for the next
millennium.

Thanks for joining us in the adventure.

Sincerely,

Sol Trujillo
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

A final note: The following Form 10-K serves as our annual report to you for 1999. With the Qwest
merger on schedule, I don’t expect to hold another U S WEST shareowner meeting. Therefore, there are
no items in the Form 10-K that require your vote.

U S WEST will not publish a more traditional and familiar annual report – with photos, graphics, etc.
– or a proxy statement this year. All that information is in the Form 10-K.

I expect the next shareowner meeting to be held by the new combined Qwest in 2001. You’ll receive
notice of and information about that meeting well in advance.

This letter contains statements about expected future events and financial results that are forward-looking and subject to risks and
uncertainties. Please refer to page 1 of the annual report on Form 10-K for a discussion of factors that could cause actual results to
differ from expectations.
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U S WEST, INC.
FORM 10-K

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitutes ‘‘forward-looking
statements’’ within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the ‘‘Reform
Act’’). Although U S WEST, Inc. (‘‘U S WEST’’ or the ‘‘Company,’’ which may also be referred to as ‘‘we,’’
‘‘us’’ or ‘‘our’’) believes that its expectations are based on reasonable assumptions within the bounds of its
knowledge of its businesses and operations, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ
materially from its expectations. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from expectations include:

• greater than anticipated competition from new entrants into the local exchange, intraLATA (local
access transport area) toll, wireless, data and directories markets, causing loss of customers and
increased price competition;

• changes in demand for our products and services, including optional custom calling features;

• higher than anticipated employee levels, capital expenditures and operating expenses (such as costs
associated with interconnection);

• the loss of significant customers;

• pending and future state and federal regulatory changes affecting the telecommunications industry,
including changes that could have an impact on the competitive environment and service pricing in
the local exchange market;

• acceleration of the deployment of additional services and/or advanced new services to customers,
such as broadband data, wireless 
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(including the purchase of spectrum licenses) and video services,
which would require substantial expenditure of financial and other resources;

• changes in economic conditions in the various markets served by our operations;

• higher than anticipated start-up costs associated with new business opportunities;

• delays in our ability to begin offering interLATA long-distance services;

• timing, cost and consumer acceptance of broadband services, including telephony, data, video and
wireless services;

• delays in the development of anticipated technologies, or the failure of such technologies to
perform according to expectations; and

• timing and completion of the announced merger with Qwest Communications International Inc.
(‘‘Qwest’’) and the subsequent integration of the businesses of the two companies.

You should not construe these cautionary statements as an exhaustive list or as any admission by us
regarding the adequacy of disclosures made by us. We cannot always predict or determine after the fact
what factors would cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by our forward-looking
statements or other statements. In addition, you are urged to consider statements that include the terms
‘‘believes,’’ ‘‘belief,’’ ‘‘expects,’’ ‘‘plans,’’ ‘‘objectives,’’ ‘‘anticipates,’’ ‘‘intends,’’ or the like to be uncertain
and forward-looking. All cautionary statements should be read as being applicable to all forward-looking
statements wherever they appear.

We do not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this report might not occur.



PART I

ITEM 1. Business

General

We are incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware and have our principal executive offices
at 1801 California Street, Denver, Colorado 80202, telephone number (303) 672-2700. We are a diversified
communications company providing services principally to customers in a 14-state mountain and western
region of the United States, which is comprised of the states of Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa,
Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington
and Wyoming (collectively referred to as the ‘‘Region’’ or ‘‘U S WEST Region’’). Our services include
telecommunications and related services, wireless services, high-speed data and Internet services and
directory services. The largest component of our company is U S WEST Communications, Inc.
(‘‘U S WEST Communications’’)
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, a wholly-owned subsidiary, which provides communications services to
more than 25 million residential and business customers in our Region.

U S WEST Communications serves approximately 74% of our Region’s population. We had 58,272
employees at December 31, 1999. We have one class of common stock, par value $.01 per share.

Recent Developments

Merger with Qwest. On July 18, 1999, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the ‘‘Qwest
Merger Agreement’’) with Qwest to merge both companies. Upon completion of the merger, holders of
our common stock will receive for each share, subject to the collar and the cash options described in the
Qwest Merger Agreement, shares of Qwest common stock having a value of $69. Subject to the terms of
the Qwest Merger Agreement, we would be merged with and into Qwest with Qwest surviving. The merger
was approved by our shareholders and Qwest’s shareholders on November 2, 1999, and is subject to the
approval of the Federal Communications Commission (‘‘FCC’’) and other state regulatory reviews.

Termination of Global Merger. Prior to the execution of the Qwest Merger Agreement, we terminated
the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 16, 1999 (the ‘‘Global Merger Agreement’’), between
us and Global Crossing Ltd. (‘‘Global Crossing’’). In connection with the Global Merger Agreement, we
completed a cash tender offer for approximately 39 million shares of Global Crossing common stock at a
price of $62.75 per share in June 1999. As consideration for the termination of the Global Merger
Agreement, we paid Global Crossing $140 million in cash and 2,231,076 shares of Global Crossing
common stock. We obtained a $140 million loan from Qwest to pay the cash portion and Qwest entered
into an agreement to buy $140 million in services from Global Crossing. In December 1999, we monetized
a portion of our holdings in Global Crossing and sold 24 million Global Crossing shares for approximately
$1.14 billion (before expenses). For further information regarding the Global Crossing monetization, you
should refer to the section entitled ‘‘Risk Management’’ under Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations on page 48.

The Separation. On October 25, 1997, the Board of Directors of our former parent company
(referred to as ‘‘Old U S WEST’’), adopted a proposal to separate Old U S WEST into two independent
companies (the ‘‘Separation’’). Old U S WEST conducted its businesses through two groups: (i) the
U S WEST Communications Group (the ‘‘Communications Group’’), which included the communications
businesses of Old U S WEST, and (ii) the U S WEST Media Group (the ‘‘Media Group’’), which included
the multimedia and directory businesses of Old U S WEST. On June 4, 1998, stockholders of Old
U S WEST voted in favor of the Separation, which became effective June 12, 1998 (the ‘‘Separation
Date’’). As part of the Separation, Old U S WEST contributed to us the businesses of the Communications
Group and the domestic directories business of the Media Group known as U S WEST Dex, Inc. (‘‘Dex’’).
The alignment of Dex with our Company is referred to in this report as the ‘‘Dex Alignment.’’ Old
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U S WEST has continued as an independent public company comprised of the businesses of Media Group,
other than Dex, and has been renamed MediaOne Group, Inc. (‘‘MediaOne’’).

The Separation was implemented under the terms of a separation agreement (the ‘‘Separation
Agreement’’) between us and MediaOne. In connection with the Dex Alignment: (i) Old U S WEST
distributed, as a dividend to holders of Media Group common stock, approximately 16,341,000 shares of
our common stock (net of the redemption of approximately 305,000 fractional shares) with an aggregate
value of $850 million (the ‘‘Dex Dividend’’) and (ii) we refinanced $3.9 billion of Old U S WEST debt
formerly allocated to Media Group (the ‘‘Dex Indebtedness’’).

Operations

We are organized on the basis of our products and services and operate in four segments: (i) retail
services, (ii) wholesale services, (iii) network services and (iv) directory services. For further financial
information on our segments, you should refer to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements on pages F-24
through F-26.

Retail Services

The principal types of retail services we offer are: (i) local exchange telephone services, (ii) long-
distance services within local access and transport areas (‘‘LATAs’’) in the Region, (iii) wireless services
and (iv) high-speed data and Internet services.

Local Exchange. Local exchange telephone services provide lines from telephone exchange offices to
customers’ premises to originate and terminate telecommunications services within our local exchange
service territories as defined by the state public utilities commissions (‘‘PUCs’’). These services include
basic local exchange services provided through our regular switched network, dedicated private line
facilities for voice and special services, such as transport of data, radio and video, switching services for
customers’ internal communications through facilities owned by us, data transport services that include
managing and configuring special service networks and dedicated low and high-capacity public or private
digital networks. Other local exchange revenue is derived from directory assistance, public telephone
service and various custom calling features such as Caller ID, Call Waiting, Call Return and 3-Way Calling.

We also provide other products and services, such as customer premises equipment and enhanced
services, including voice mail to residents, business customers and governmental agencies.

IntraLATA Long-Distance. We provide intraLATA long-distance services within our Region. These
services include intraLATA service beyond the local calling area, Wide Area Telecommunications Service
or ‘‘800’’ services for customers with highly concentrated demand, and special services, such as transport of
data, radio and video. We intend to begin offering interLATA long-distance services in our Region
pursuant to the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the ‘‘Telecommunications Act’’ or the ‘‘Act’’) upon
satisfaction of certain regulatory conditions primarily related to local exchange telephone competition. We
currently offer limited out-of-region long-distance services.

Wireless Services. We hold 10 MHz licenses to provide personal communications services (‘‘PCS’’) in
53 markets in our Region. These licenses, which cover approximately 20 million POPs (i.e., potential
customers), were purchased in an FCC auction held in January 1997. In December 1997, we purchased
additional licenses for a majority of the Seattle market, which cover an additional 4 million POPs. Using
these licenses, we are constructing networks utilizing digital code division multiple access technology. We
launched wireless PCS services in (i) Denver, Fort Collins, Greeley and Colorado Springs, Colorado;
Portland and Salem, Oregon; and Vancouver, Washington in 1997; (ii) Phoenix and Tucson, Arizona;
Minneapolis, St. Cloud, St. Paul and Rochester, Minnesota; and Seattle, Olympia and Bremerton,
Washington in 1998; and (iii) Cheyenne, Wyoming; Pueblo, Colorado and Salt Lake City, Utah (including
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the Wasatch front region) in 1999, covering approximately 15 million POPs. These wireless services, which
are being marketed under the ‘‘U S WEST Wireless’’ brand, enable customers to use the same number for
their wireless phone as for their home or business phone. We recently announced a joint venture with
Touch America, Inc., the telecommunications subsidiary of The Montana Power Corporation, to provide
the nation’s only one-number digital PCS service to customers in seven states in the Pacific Northwest and
the Upper Midwest.

High-Speed Data and Internet Services. We offer high-speed data and Internet services to customers
inside and outside our Region. Through U S WEST !NTERPRISE, our data division, and U S WEST
Interprise America, Inc., one of our subsidiaries, we provide high-speed data communications and network
services, including frame relay service, transparent LAN (Local Area Network) service, ATM (Asynchro-
nous Transfer Mode) Cell Relay Service, network integration solutions and other data-related services to
business customers. In 1997 and 1998, we introduced U S WEST MegabitTM Services, a high-speed Internet
access service, and U S WEST.net, a standard Internet access service, in select markets and expect to
launch these services in additional markets in 2000. In 1999, we also launched our Title VI broadband
video and Internet services under the name of Choice TV and Online Services in Phoenix, Arizona.

At December 31, 1999, U S WEST Communications had over 17 million telephone network access
lines in service, an increase of 2.5% over 1998. In June 1999, U S WEST Communications entered into a
series of definitive agreements to sell local exchange telephone properties serving approximately 530,000
access lines in nine states for approximately $1.65 billion in cash, subject to adjustment. Approval of the
sale is subject to review by federal and state regulatory agencies. The transfer of ownership, which will
occur on a state-by-state basis, is expected to be completed over the next two years. Additionally,
U S WEST Communications is planning to sell approximately 270,000 access lines in New Mexico and
Washington. For the year ended December 31, 1999, retail services accounted for 68% of U S WEST’s
total revenue. For financial information about segments of our business, please refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages F-24 through F-26.

Wholesale Services

We provide sales, marketing and customer care for competitive local exchange carriers (‘‘CLECs’’),
interexchange carriers (‘‘IXCs’’) and wireless providers in the purchase of wholesale local network services.
CLECs are communications companies, certified by a state PUC, that provide local exchange service
within a U S WEST associated local calling area. IXCs provide transitional long distance services to end
users by handling calls that are made from a phone exchange in one LATA to an exchange in another
LATA. We have 27 LATAs within our Region. We provide such wholesale local network services by
interconnecting such carriers and providers to our public switched network or through our dedicated
private lines. These carriers can resell our products and services. For the year ended December 31, 1999,
wholesale services accounted for 22% of U S WEST’s total revenue.

Network Services

Our network segment provides access to our telecommunications network, including our information
technologies, primarily to our retail services and wholesale services segments. Our revenue from network
services accounted for less than 10% of U S WEST’s total revenue.

Directory Services

Through Dex, we publish White and Yellow Pages directories in our Region. Dex’s business scope
includes all facets of directory-related publishing services such as market identification, analysis and
planning, advertising and sales, customer service, directory design, printing and distribution, billing and
collection, and product service promotion. Dex’s customers include businesses that purchase advertising in
its directories and other related products, and consumers who use directories and other advertising and
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information services. Dex also provides directory publishing services to other telephone companies on a
contract basis and electronic directory services. Dex is expanding its directories business onto the Internet
by marketing innovative and interactive listings, advertising and websites, primarily through existing sales
channels throughout our Region. Our revenue from the directory services business accounted for approxi-
mately 11% of U S WEST’s total revenue.

Competition

We face increasing competition from a variety of sources, including other local service providers, long-
distance service providers, cable television companies, wireless service providers, data and Internet service
providers and other entrants from closely related industries. For a discussion of competition, you should
refer to the section entitled ‘‘Competition’’ under Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations on page 49.

Regulation

U S WEST Communications is subject to varying degrees of regulation by state PUCs with respect to
intrastate rates and services and access charge tariffs. We are also subject to the jurisdiction of the FCC
with respect to interstate access tariffs (that specify the charges for the origination and termination of
interstate communications) and other matters.

U S WEST Communications is currently working with regulators to gain approval of various
initiatives, including gaining long-distance entry, efforts to rebalance prices, achieve alternative forms of
regulation and accelerated capital recovery and eliminate subsidies.

State and local regulatory authorities may also regulate certain terms and conditions of the offering of
wireless services, such as the siting and construction of transmitter towers, antennas and equipment
shelters and zoning and building permit approvals. For a further discussion, you should refer to the
section entitled ‘‘Regulation’’ under Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations on page 50.

ITEM 2. Properties

Our properties do not lend themselves to description by character and location of principal units. At
December 31, 1999, substantially all of our property was utilized by U S WEST Communications (and in
particular, the network segment) in providing telecommunications services. Substantially all of U S WEST
Communications’ central office equipment is located in owned buildings situated on land owned in fee,
while many garages and administrative and business offices are leased.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

Our Company and its subsidiaries are subject to claims and proceedings arising in the ordinary course
of business. For a discussion of certain of these actions that may be material, you should read Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages F-27 through F-28.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On November 2, 1999, we held our special meeting of shareholders to consider and vote upon a
proposal to approve and adopt the merger with Qwest. As reported in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1999, our shareholders approved the merger with Qwest.

We intend to hold our annual meeting of shareholders in December 2000 if the merger with Qwest is
not consummated before then. Accordingly, shareholder proposals for inclusion in the annual meeting
proxy statement should be sent to our Secretary at 1801 California Street, Suite 5100, Denver, Colorado,
80202 and must be received by August 3, 2000.
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item can be found at Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements on page F-29. The United States markets for trading in U S WEST common stock are the New
York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange. As of February 25, 2000, our common stock was held by
approximately 567,293 shareholders of record.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

For a discussion of the information required by this item, you should refer to pages 37 and 38.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For a discussion of the information required by this item, you should refer to pages 38 through 53.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

For a discussion of the information required by this item, you should refer to page 48 under the
caption entitled ‘‘Risk Management.’’

ITEM 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

For a discussion of the information required by this item, you should refer to pages F-1 through F-31.

ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We have nothing to report under this item.



PART III

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain information regarding U S WEST’s directors and executive
officers:

Name Age Position

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . 48 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman(1)

Linda G. Alvarado . . . . . . . . . 48 Director(1)

Craig R. Barrett . . . . . . . . . . . 60 Director(1)

Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . 44 Executive Vice President - Retail Markets
Hank Brown . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60 Director(2)

Jerry J. Colangelo . . . . . . . . . . 60 Director(1)

Janet K. Cooper . . . . . . . . . . . 46 Vice President - Finance and Controller
Manuel A. Fernandez . . . . . . . 52 Director(3)

Sean P. Foley . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 Vice President - Treasurer
George J. Harad . . . . . . . . . . . 55 Director(2)

Peter S. Hellman . . . . . . . . . . . 50 Director(3)

John A. Kelley, Jr . . . . . . . . . . 50 President of Wholesale - U S WEST Communications, Inc.
Marilyn C. Nelson . . . . . . . . . . 60 Director(2)

Frank Popoff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64 Director(3)

Mark Roellig . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 Executive Vice President - Public Policy, Human Resources &
Law, General Counsel and Secretary

James A. Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . 47 Executive Vice President and President of U S WEST Dex,
Inc.

Allan R. Spies . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . 50 Executive Vice President - Operations and Technology
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 President - U S WEST !
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NTERPRISE Networking Services

Except for Ms. Bernard, Ms. Cooper, Mr. Foley and Mr. Kelley, each of the above executive officers
has held a managerial position with Old U S WEST or an affiliate of Old U S WEST since 1994.

(1) Class III Director (Term Expires 2001)
(2) Class I Director (Term Expires 2002)
(3) Class II Director (Term Expires 2000)

The following is a brief description of the principal occupations, business experience, terms as director
(if applicable) and directorships of the directors and executive officers of U S WEST. Executive officers are
not elected for a fixed term of office, but serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Solomon D. Trujillo
Director Since: June 1998 (Chairman since 1999)
Principal Occupation: President and Chief Executive Officer of U S WEST since June 1998.
Business Experience: President and Chief Executive Officer of the Communications Group of

Old U S WEST from 1995 to 1998. President and Chief Executive
Officer of U S WEST Marketing Resources Group, Inc. from 1992 to
1995. Mr. Trujillo joined The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph
Company in 1974 and has been affiliated with U S WEST and its
predecessors since that time, serving in various marketing, sales, finance
and public policy positions.

Other Directorships: BankAmerica Corporation; Dayton Hudson Corporation; PepsiCo, Inc.
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Linda G. Alvarado
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation and President and Chief Executive Officer of Alvarado Construction, Inc.
Business Experience: since 1978.
Other Directorships: Engelhard Corporation; Pitney Bowes, Inc.; Pepsi Bottling Group, Inc.;

Lennox International Inc.
Committees: Human Resources Committee; Public Policy/Nominating Committee

Craig R. Barrett
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: President and Chief Executive Officer of Intel Corporation since 1998.
Business Experience: President and Chief Operating Officer of Intel Corporation from 1997 to

1998, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from 1993 to
1997 and Executive Vice President from 1990 to 1993. Various
technology, engineering and manufacturing management positions with
Intel Corporation from 1974 to 1990. Professor of Engineering at
Stanford University from 1965 to 1974. Member of National Academy of
Engineering.

Other Directorships: Intel Corporation
Committees: Audit Committee; Finance Committee

Betsy J. Bernard
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President - Retail Markets of U S WEST since July 1998.
Business Experience: Before joining U S WEST, Ms. Bernard was head of AVIRNEX, an

advanced international telecommunications services company from 1997
to 1998. Prior to that, Ms. Bernard was President and Chief Executive
Officer of Pacific Bell Communications, the long-distance subsidiary of
Pacific Telesis Group from 1995 to 1997. Before joining PacBell, Ms.
Bernard worked for AT&T from 1977 to 1995 in a number of positions.

Directorships: Mile High United Way; The Principal Financial Group; Zantaz.com Inc.

Hank Brown
Director Since: November 1998
Principal Occupation: President of the University of Northern Colorado since 1998.
Business Experience: Director of the Center for Public Policy for the University of Denver

from 1997 to 1998. United States Senator for the State of Colorado from
1991 to 1997. United States Congressman for the State of Colorado from
1981 to 1991. Various positions with Monfort of Colorado Incorporated
from 1969 to 1981. United States Navy from 1962 to 1966. Attorney and
Certified Public Accountant.

Other Directorships: Sealed Air Corporation; Centennial Bank Holdings Inc.
Committees: Human Resources Committee; Public Policy/Nominating Committee
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Jerry J. Colangelo
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: Owner, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Arizona

Diamondbacks since 1995. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Phoenix Suns, NBA since 1987.

Business Experience: General Manager of the Phoenix Suns, NBA from 1968 to 1987. Head
Scout and Director of Merchandising for the Chicago Bulls, NBA from
1966 to 1968. Associate of D.O. Klein & Associates from 1964 to 1965.
Partner at the House of Charles, Inc. from 1962 to 1964.

Other Directorships: Phoenix Art Museum; Phoenix Community Alliance; Arizona
Diamondbacks; Phoenix Suns Charities

Committees: Human Resources Committee; Public Policy/Nominating Committee

Janet K. Cooper
Principal Occupation: Vice President - Finance and Controller of U S WEST since June 1999.
Business Experience: Prior to her current assignment, Ms. Cooper was Vice President -

Treasurer and Controller of U S WEST from March 1999 to June 1999,
and Vice President and Treasurer of U S WEST from May 1998 to
March 1999. Before joining U S WEST, Ms. Cooper was Vice President
of Treasury and Tax Business of The Quaker Oats Company from 1997 to
1998, and Vice President and Treasurer from 1992 to 1997. Ms. Cooper
joined The Quaker Oats Company in 1978 and held various financial and
managerial positions.

Other Directorships: Lennox International Inc.; The Toro Company

Manuel A. Fernandez
Director Since: April 1999
Principal Occupation: Chairman of the Gartner Group since 1995.
Business Experience: Chief Executive Officer of the Gartner Group from 1995 to 1998; and

President from 1991 to 1995. President and Chief Executive Officer of
Dataquest, Inc. from 1984 to 1991. President and Chief Executive Officer
of Gavilan Computer Corporation from 1982 to 1984. President of Zilog
Incorporated from 1977 to 1982.

Other Directorships: Black & Decker; Brunswick Corporation; Click Commerce, Inc.;
NetNumbers; Timesoft, Inc.; Warrantycheck.com, Inc.

Committees: Human Resources Committee; Finance Committee

Sean P. Foley
Principal Occupation: Vice President and Treasurer of U S WEST since June 1999
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Foley was Assistant Treasurer for

U S WEST from June 1998 to June 1999. Mr. Foley joined U S WEST
in 1995 and served in various manager positions in the Capital Markets
and Corporate Finance organizations of the Company. Before joining
U S WEST, Mr. Foley served as Investment Officer for the City of
Westminster, Colorado from 1991 to 1995.
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George J. Harad
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: Chairman of the Board of Boise Cascade Corporation since 1995.

President and Chief Executive Officer of Boise Cascade Corporation
since 1994.

Business Experience: President and Chief Operating Officer of Boise Cascade Corporation
from 1991 to 1994. Chairman of the Board of Boise Cascade Office
Products Corporation since 1995.

Other Directorships: FM Global Insurance; Homestead Technologies, Inc.
Committees: Finance Committee (Chair); Audit Committee

Peter S. Hellman
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer of

Nordson Corporation.
Business Experience: President and Chief Operating Officer of TRW Inc. from 1995 to 1999.

Assistant President of TRW Inc. from 1994 to 1995. Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer from 1991 to 1994. Vice President
and Treasurer from 1989 to 1991. Various positions with BP America
from 1979 to 1989 and the Irving Trust Company from 1972 to 1979.

Committees: Audit Committee (Chair); Finance Committee

John A. Kelley, Jr.
Principal Occupation: President of Wholesale - U S WEST Communications since April 1998.
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Kelley was Vice President - Large

Business and Government Accounts and President - Federal Services of
U S WEST Communications since 1995. Prior to joining U S WEST,
Mr. Kelley was Area President for Mead Corporation’s Zellerbach
Southwest businesses and Vice President and General Manager for
Zellerbach’s Industrial business unit.

Marilyn C. Nelson
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Carlson Companies,

Inc.
Business Experience: Since joining Carlson Companies in 1989, Ms. Nelson has held various

positions with Carlson Companies including Director, Chief Operating
Officer and Senior Vice President of Carlson Holdings, Inc., Co-Chair
Carlson Wagonlit Travel, and Deputy Chairman of Thomas Cook
Holdings, Inc. Ms. Nelson is also National Chair of Travel Industry of
America, and a member of the United States National Tourism
Organization, World Travel and Tourism Council, International Advisory
Council, Center for International Leadership and Committee of 200.

Other Directorships: Exxon Mobil Corporation; Carlson Companies, Inc.
Committees: Public Policy/Nominating Committee (Chair); Audit Committee
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Frank Popoff
Director Since: June 1998
Principal Occupation: Chairman of The Dow Chemical Company since 1992.
Business Experience: Chief Executive Officer of The Dow Chemical Company from 1987 to

1995.
Other Directorships: American Express Company; Chemical Financial Corporation; United

Technologies Corporation.
Committees: Human Resources Committee (Chair); Finance Committee

Mark Roellig
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President - Public Policy, Human Resources and Law,

General Counsel and Secretary of U S WEST since June 1998.
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Roellig was Vice President - Public

Policy and Regulatory Law of U S WEST Communications Group from
1997 until the Separation. Mr. Roellig had served as a Vice President of
Old U S WEST since 1994 and has held a variety of positions in the Law
Department of Old U S WEST since 1983.

James A. Smith
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President of U S WEST since June 1998.
Business Experience: Mr. Smith has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of

U S WEST Dex, Inc. since 1997. Mr. Smith had been a Vice President of
Old U S WEST since 1987 and has held a variety of operational,
marketing and management positions with Old U S WEST and its
predecessors for 20 years.

Directorships: U S WEST Foundation; the Public Education Network; The Children’s
Hospital; The Wigwam Club, Inc.; Critical Path, Inc.

Allan R. Spies
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of U S WEST since

June 1998.
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Spies was Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer of U S WEST Communications Group from 1997 until
the Separation. Mr. Spies had been a Vice President of Old U S WEST
since 1995 and has held a variety of finance and management positions
with Old U S WEST and its predecessors for over 29 years.
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Gregory M. Winn
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President - Operations and Technology of U S WEST

since July 1998.
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Winn was Executive Vice President -

Retail Markets for U S WEST Communications Group from 1997 until
the Separation and for U S WEST from the Separation until July 1998.
Mr. Winn has been a Vice President of Old U S WEST since 1994 and
has held a variety of marketing and sales positions with Old U S WEST
and its predecessors for 29 years.

Joseph R. Zell
Principal Occupation: President of U S WEST !NTERPRISE Networking Services since 1997.
Business Experience: Prior to his current assignment, Mr. Zell was President of the Carrier

Wholesale Division of Old U S WEST from 1996 to 1997. Mr. Zell
began his career at Old U S WEST in 1991 as a director of Product
Development for !NTERPRISE. Later, he served as the Executive
Director of Applications Innovation and Vice President of Markets and
Innovation for U S WEST !NTERPRISE.

Directorships: USInternetworking, Inc.; Intertainer, Inc.; Netpliance, Inc.

The Board of Directors currently consists of 10 Directors divided into three classes (Class I, Class II
and Class III) serving staggered three-year terms.

Other Matters

On February 29, 2000, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Solomon D. Trujillo,
indicated that he would not join Qwest upon the completion of the merger. It is anticipated that
announcements regarding the proposed management of the post-merger combined company may be made
in the near future.



ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The table below shows the compensation for Solomon D. Trujillo, who served as President and Chief
Executive Officer, and the four next most highly compensated executive officers for the last three years
(with the exception of Ms. Bernard, who joined the company in 1998). Compensation for 1997 and from
January 1, 1998 until the Separation relates to services rendered to Old U S WEST.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation

Securities
UnderlyingOther Annual Restricted All OtherOptions/SARsSalary Bonus Compensation Stock LTIP Payouts Compensation(9)

Name and Principal Position Year ($) ($) ($) Award(s) ($)(2) (#) ($) ($)

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999 $896,552 $
Chairman, President and Chief Executive 1998 $716,041

Officer 1997 $525,220
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1,025,000 $119,132(1) $16,293,750(3) 1,400,000 $974,043 $128,581
$ 650,000 $ 42,432 — 1,063,000 $414,090 $ 62,948
$ 645,000 $ 11,821 — 113,836 $267,319 $ 51,129

Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999 $441,379 $ 300,000 $ 16,294 (4) 415,212 $252,041 $ 98,467
Executive Vice President - Operations & 1998 $338,099 $ 217,000 $ 11,475 (5) 364,071 $ 50,397 $111,376

Technology 1997 $264,127 $ 225,000 $ 9,033 $67,987(6) 25,933 $ 32,956 $301,296

Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999 $364,943 $ 275,000 $ 1,616 (4) 317,000 $174,719 $ 75,366
President - U S WEST 1998 $288,793 $ 144,600 $ 12,421 (5) 287,500 $ 24,396 $ 24,905

!NTERPRISE Networking Services 1997 $206,688 $ 115,000 $ 2,000 $315,010 39,350 $ 15,907 $ 23,360

Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999 $373,372 $ 262,500 $ 3,410 (4)(7) 614,000 $ — $334,592
Executive Vice President - Retail 1998 $179,694 $ 155,167 $ 10,066 $374,581(8) 101,500 $ — $111,068
Markets

John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1999 $360,632 $ 275,000 $ 14,786 (4) 343,745 $149,182 $ 71,115
President of Wholesale - 1998 $307,084 $ 157,750 $ 19,072 (5) 289,963 $ 54,570 $ 15,770

U S WEST Communications 1997 $210,267 $ 162,153 $ 25,846 — 11,300 $ 35,814 $ 16,870

Note: On June 5, 1998, the shareholders of Old U S WEST approved the Separation. As part of the Separation: (i) restricted Old
U S WEST Media Group targeted stock (‘‘Media Stock’’), held by individuals who became employees of U S WEST, was replaced
immediately prior to the Separation with substitute restricted Old U S WEST Communications Group targeted stock (‘‘Communica-
tions Stock’’), each share of which, along with existing restricted Communications Stock, was then replaced with a share of restricted
U S WEST common stock; (ii) phantom stock units for Media Stock, held by individuals who became employees of U S WEST, were
replaced immediately prior to the Separation with substitute phantom stock units of Communications Stock, each unit of which, along
with each existing unit of Communications Stock, was then replaced with a phantom unit for U S WEST common stock; (iii) option
holders who continued employment with U S WEST did not forfeit their stock options for Media Stock as a result of their
termination of employment with Old U S WEST; and (iv) stock options for Communications Stock were replaced with substitute
options for U S WEST common stock. On October 31, 1995, the shareholders of Old U S WEST approved the creation of two classes
of common stock, Communications Stock and Media Stock, intended to reflect separately the communications businesses and the
multimedia businesses of Old U S WEST (the ‘‘1995 Recapitalization’’). Options granted between November 1, 1995 and June 12,
1998 were options in either Communications Stock or Media Stock.

(1) Mr. Trujillo’s other annual compensation includes aircraft use ($65,463) and taxes paid by the company ($35,956).

(2) At December 31, 1999, Messrs. Trujillo, Winn, Zell, Kelley and Ms. Bernard, respectively, held 300,000, 9,600, 8,720, 13,400, and
7,300 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock with an aggregate value, respectively, of $21,600,000, $691,200, $627,840,
$964,800 and $525,600. Mr. Winn’s, Zell’s and Kelley’s and Ms. Bernard’s restricted U S WEST common stock share amounts at
year end do not include 30,000, 25,000, 25,000 and 25,000 shares, respectively, which were granted in tandem with options (see
Notes 5 and 7), and they do not include the August 1999 merger retention awards (see Note 4). At December 31, 1998,
Messrs. Trujillo, Winn, Zell, Kelley and Ms. Bernard, respectively, held 0, 9,600, 8,720, 13,400 and 7,300 shares of restricted
U S WEST common stock with an aggregate value, respectively, of $-0-, $620,400, $563,350, $865,975 and $471,763. Dividends on
restricted U S WEST common stock may be reinvested in U S WEST common stock.

(3) Mr. Trujillo was granted 300,000 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock as part of the August 1999 merger retention plan.
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(4) The shares of restricted U S WEST common stock approved for Messrs. Winn, Zell and Kelley and Ms. Bernard in the amounts
of 50,000, 30,000, 40,000 and 40,000, respectively, as part of the August 1999 merger retention plan, will not be granted until just
prior to the merger with Qwest and therefore are not listed in the above table or in year end totals.

(5) Messrs. Winn, Zell and Kelley were granted 30,000, 25,000 and 25,000 shares, respectively, of restricted U S WEST common
stock in tandem with a grant of 300,000, 250,000 and 250,000 options, respectively, in August 1998. These tandem grants cliff vest
four years from the date of grant. Upon vesting, these executives shall only be entitled to receive one of the tandem grants with
the other grant being forfeited. Only the options are listed in the above table.

(6) Mr. Winn was granted 1,550 shares of Communications Stock in February of 1997, subject to a six-month restriction as to sale or
transferability. Mr. Winn was granted an additional 2,100 shares of Communications Stock in February of 1997, subject to a four-
year restriction as to sale or transferability. At December 31, 1997, Mr. Winn held 10,600 shares of restricted Communications
Stock and 1,000 shares of restricted Media Stock, all of which were entitled to dividends, if any, paid during the restriction
period, and which had an aggregate value of $478,325 and $28,875, respectively.

(7) Ms. Bernard was granted 25,000 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock in tandem with a grant of 250,000 options in
February, 1999. This tandem grant cliff vests four years from the date of grant. Upon vesting, Ms. Bernard shall only be entitled
to receive one of the tandem grants with the other grant being forfeited. Only the options are listed in the above table.

(8) Ms. Bernard was granted 7,300 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock in June 1998.

(9) The amounts in this column are attributed to (a)(i) the U S WEST matching contribution under the Deferred Compensation
Plan, (ii) the U S WEST matching contribution under the Savings Plan/ESOP, (iii) the current dollar value of the remainder of
the premium paid under a split-dollar insurance arrangement and (iv) the amount paid for the term insurance portion of the
foregoing split-dollar arrangement and (b) the retention and relocation payments. The separate amounts relating to
(a)(i) through (a)(iv) are set forth in the table below. The separate amounts relating to (b) are described as follows in narrative
form. In 1999, Messrs. Winn, Zell and Kelley were each paid $40,000 in 1999 in accordance with their respective 1998 retention
agreements. In 1998, U S WEST and Old U S WEST paid Mr. Winn $68,450 for certain additional relocation expenses including
spousal travel. In 1997, Old U S WEST paid Mr. Winn $274,977 to cover certain housing expenses he incurred in connection with
a relocation. In 1998, U S WEST paid Ms. Bernard $48,505 for certain relocation expenses and $62,500 as a sign-on cash award.
In 1999, Ms. Bernard was paid a retention bonus of $309,745 ($282,000 plus interest) as part of her employment arrangement for
remaining an employee for 18 months.

Deferred Compensation Savings Plan Company Split-Dollar Premium Term Portion
Company Match Match Value Premium

Year Ended December 31, 1999

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . $69,327 $8,000 $50,309 $945
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . . $26,367 $6,552 $25,128 $420
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,247 $8,000 $16,951 $168
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . $24,502 — — $345
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . $10,247 $8,000 $12,532 $336

Year Ended December 31, 1998

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . $29,576 $8,000 $24,770 $602
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . . $22,768 $7,480 $12,468 $210
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,750 $8,000 $11,028 $127
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . — — — $ 63
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . — $8,000 $ 7,529 $241

Year Ended December 31, 1997

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . $19,250 $8,000 $23,441 $438
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,666 $7,157 $12,319 $177
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,341 $8,000 $11,909 $110
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . — $8,000 $ 8,674 $196
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Option/SAR Grants in Last Fiscal Year and Year End Option/SAR Values

The table below shows the stock options granted to the named executive officers during 1999 by
U S WEST. We employed the Black-Scholes option pricing model to develop the theoretical values set
forth under the ‘‘Grant Date Present Value’’ column. These stock options comprise a portion of the named
executive officers’ total long-term compensation potential.

Individual Grants

Percent of Total
Options/SARs

Number of Securities Granted to Grant Date
Underlying Options/ Employees in Exercise or Base Expiration Present Value

Name SARs Granted(#) Fiscal Year Price ($/Sh) Date ($)(5)

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . 400,000(1) 3.5250% $62.2500 02/05/09 $12,073,880
1,000,000(3) 8.8126% $54.3125 08/06/09 $26,868,700

Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . 112,000(1) 0.9870% $62.2500 02/05/09 $ 3,380,686
300,000(3) 2.6438% $54.3125 08/06/09 $ 8,060,610

1,141(2) 0.0101% $55.6875 09/01/05 $ 31,433
414(2) 0.0036% $55.6875 11/08/03 $ 11,405

1,657(2) 0.0146% $55.6875 03/15/06 $ 45,649
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . 67,000(1) 0.5904% $62.2500 02/05/09 $ 2,022,375

250,000(3) 2.2032% $54.3125 08/06/09 $ 6,717,175
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . 250,000(4) 2.2032% $61.0250 02/04/09 $ 7,404,900

89,000(1) 0.7843% $62.2500 02/05/09 $ 2,686,438
275,000(3) 2.4235% $54.3125 08/06/09 $ 7,388,893

John A. Kelley . . . . . . . . 89,000(1) 0.7843% $62.2500 02/05/09 $ 2,686,438
250,000(3) 2.2032% $54.3125 08/06/09 $ 6,717,175

3,392(2) 0.0299% $55.6880 09/01/05 $ 93,446
1,353(2) 0.0119% $55.6880 09/01/05 $ 37,274

(1) These stock options become exercisable and cliff vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant, and include the reload
feature. The reload feature gives the optionee the right to receive a further option, at the then current market price, for a
number of shares equal to the number of shares of stock surrendered by the optionee in payment of the exercise price of the
original option.

(2) These stock options become fully exercisable one year from the date of grant and do not include a reload feature.

(3) These stock options become exercisable in one-fourth increments on the first, second, third, and fourth anniversaries of the date
of grant, and include a reload feature. The reload feature gives the optionee the right to receive a further option, at the then
current market price, for a number of shares equal to the number of shares of stock surrendered by the optionee in payment of
the exercise price of the original option.

(4) Ms. Bernard was granted 25,000 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock in tandem with a grant of 250,000 options on
February 4, 1999. This tandem grant cliff vests four years from the date of grant. Upon vesting, Ms. Bernard shall only be entitled
to receive one of the tandem grants with the other grant being forfeited.

(5) Standard application of Black-Scholes option pricing model using the expected dividend yield (0.0%), expected stock price
volatility (57.0%), two and five year risk free rate of return based on United States Treasury Bond rates and options being
outstanding for an average term of 4.0 years.
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Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option/SAR Values

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Options/SARs at FY-End In-the-Money Options/SARs

(#) at FY-End ($)Shares Acquired on Value
Name Exercise (#) Realized ($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable

Solomon D. Trujillo . — $ — 429,890 2,383,334 $15,851,035 $42,508,937
Gregory M. Winn . . . 4,700 $126,469 81,197 763,579 $ 2,816,911 $13,740,346
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . — $ — 50,183 622,617 $ 1,896,553 $11,841,919
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . — $ — 33,832 681,668 $ 691,307 $ 9,858,255
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . 7,202 $208,808 70,895 622,713 $ 2,621,901 $11,156,441

Long-Term Incentive Plans and Awards in Last Fiscal Year

No dividend equivalent units were granted during 1999. The table below shows dividend equivalent
units granted to the named executive officers during 1998 under the Long-Term Incentive Plan for
U S WEST and Old U S WEST and the target payout at the effective time of the merger with Qwest. Each
dividend equivalent unit represents the right to receive an amount equal to the cumulative dividends paid
on our common stock during a performance period, multiplied by a percentage representing the extent to
which our Company achieves certain performance goals based on financial results, revenue, productivity
and efficiency, service and customer care, employee satisfaction, and stock performance.

Number of Units Performance Period Until Estimated Future Payouts Under
Name Granted in 1998 Maturation or Payout Non-Stock Price-Based Plan Target(1)

Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . 231,000 1998-2000 $1,532,685
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . 47,000 1998-2000 $ 311,845
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,700 1998-2000 $ 183,790
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . — — $ —
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . 28,000 1998-2000 $ 185,780

(1) These amounts have been estimated based on the anticipated merger with Qwest. Estimated future payouts comprised of eleven
quarters at $0.535 per share and one quarter at $0.750 per share for August 1999.



U S WEST Pension Plans

The tables below show the maximum estimated annual benefits payable to the named executive
officers when they retire under the U S WEST Pension Plans. These estimates are based on applicable
pension plan formulas for specified final average annual compensation and specified years of service. The
second table is based on the ‘‘defined lump sum’’ pension plan formula. Messrs. Trujillo
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 and Winn and
Ms. Bernard are eligible to receive the greater of any pension amount that is calculated under either table.
Messrs. Zell and Kelley are eligible to receive pension amounts under the second table.

Pension Plan Table

First Table

YEARS OF SERVICEFinal Average Annual
Compensation 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

$ 500,000 . . . . . . . $111,200 $148,200 $185,300 $222,400 $ 259,400 $ 290,700 $ 321,900
600,000 . . . . . . . 133,700 178,200 222,800 267,400 311,900 349,400 386,900
700,000 . . . . . . . 156,200 208,200 260,300 312,400 364,400 408,200 451,900
800,000 . . . . . . . 178,700 238,200 297,800 357,400 416,900 466,900 516,900
900,000 . . . . . . . 201,200 268,200 335,300 402,400 469,400 525,700 581,900

1,000,000 . . . . . . . 223,700 298,200 372,800 447,400 521,900 584,400 646,900
1,100,000 . . . . . . . 246,200 328,200 410,300 492,400 574,400 643,200 711,900
1,200,000 . . . . . . . 268,700 358,200 447,800 537,400 626,900 701,900 776,900
1,300,000 . . . . . . . 291,200 388,200 485,300 582,400 679,400 760,700 841,900
1,400,000 . . . . . . . 313,700 418,200 522,800 627,400 731,900 819,400 906,900
1,500,000 . . . . . . . 336,200 448,200 560,300 672,400 784,400 878,200 971,900
1,600,000 . . . . . . . 358,700 478,200 597,800 717,400 836,900 936,900 1,036,900
1,700,000 . . . . . . . 381,200 508,200 635,300 762,400 889,400 995,700 1,101,900
1,800,000 . . . . . . . 403,700 538,200 672,800 807,400 941,900 1,054,400 1,166,900
1,900,000 . . . . . . . 426,200 568,200 710,300 852,400 994,400 1,113,200 1,231,900
2,000,000 . . . . . . . 448,700 598,200 747,800 897,400 1,046,900 1,171,900 1,296,900
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Second Table

YEARS OF SERVICEFinal Average Annual
Compensation 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

$ 500,000 . . . . . . . $152,400 $187,600 $211,000 $228,600 $ 240,300 $ 246,200 $ 252,100
600,000 . . . . . . . 183,400 225,700 253,900 275,100 289,200 296,200 303,300
700,000 . . . . . . . 214,300 263,800 296,800 321,500 338,000 346,200 354,500
800,000 . . . . . . . 245,300 301,900 339,600 367,900 386,800 396,200 405,600
900,000 . . . . . . . 276,200 340,000 382,500 414,300 435,600 446,200 456,800

1,000,000 . . . . . . . 307,200 378,100 425,300 460,800 484,400 496,200 508,000
1,100,000 . . . . . . . 338,100 416,200 468,200 507,200 533,200 546,200 559,200
1,200,000 . . . . . . . 369,100 454,300 511,100 553,600 582,000 596,200 610,400
1,300,000 . . . . . . . 400,000 492,400 553,900 600,100 630,800 646,200 661,600
1,400,000 . . . . . . . 431,000 530,500 596,800 646,500 679,700 696,200 712,800
1,500,000 . . . . . . . 462,000 568,600 639,600 692,900 728,500 746,200 764,000
1,600,000 . . . . . . . 492,900 606,700 682,500 739,400 777,300 796,200 815,200
1,700,000 . . . . . . . 523,900 644,800 725,400 785,800 826,100 846,200 866,400
1,800,000 . . . . . . . 554,800 682,900 768,200 832,200 874,900 896,200 917,600
1,900,000 . . . . . . . 585,800 721,000 811,100 878,700 923,700 946,200 968,800
2,000,000 . . . . . . . 616,700 759,000 853,900 925,100 972,500 996,300 1,020,000

The pension benefits, listed in the above tables, set forth the projected benefit assuming the executive
retires at age 65. The calculation of ‘‘final average annual compensation’’ is the highest average compensa-
tion for 60 consecutive months of the 120 consecutive-month period preceding retirement and includes
compensation that would appear under the ‘‘Salary’’ and ‘‘Bonus’’ columns of the Summary Compensation
Table. At December 31, 1999, Messrs. Trujillo, Winn, Zell and Kelley and Ms. Bernard had 25, 29, 8, 4 and
23 years of service, respectively. Ms. Bernard is subject to a special arrangement that grants her full service
credit under the old formula of the U S WEST Pension Plan for her original AT&T employment date of
1977.

Benefits set forth in the preceding tables are computed as a straight-life annuity and are subject to
deduction for Social Security. For information relating to a recent increase in Mr. Trujillo’s base salary,
please refer to the section entitled ‘‘Report of Human Resources Committee on Executive Compensa-
tion—Base Salary’’ on page 25.
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Compensation of Directors

Goal

To attract and retain highly qualified Directors, we offer a competitive Director compensation
package. This compensation package includes various equity components intended to align the interests of
Directors with the long-term interests of shareholders. The Board of Directors periodically reviews
Director compensation policies, and based on the input of several nationally recognized sources, the Board
of Directors has determined that the Company’s policies are in line with suggested industry standards.

Fees

Directors fees, paid only to Directors who are not U S WEST employees, are as follows:

Annual retainer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $35,000
Committee chairman retainer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,000
Significant special project consultation fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,500
Attendance fee for each Board or Committee meeting . . . . . . . . . $ 1,500 per day
Annual telecommunications services and equipment allowance (net

of taxes) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,000 (up to)

Any Director who is an employee of U S WEST or one of its subsidiaries receives no compensation
for serving as a Director. Directors may elect to receive payment of all or any portion of their annual or
committee chair retainers and meeting fees in common stock.

Deferred Fees

Directors can choose to have the payment of all or some of their fees deferred in the form of common
stock or cash. Deferred amounts that otherwise would be payable in common stock are credited in an
account as phantom stock units. The value of these phantom stock units rises and falls with the price of our
common stock. Also, we provide a five percent match if a Director defers into phantom stock. Additional
phantom stock units are credited to the account when we declare a dividend on our common stock.
Deferred cash payments earn interest that is compounded quarterly at a rate equal to the average interest
rate for ten-year United States Treasury notes plus one percent.

Stock Plan

Under the terms of the U S WEST 1998 Stock Plan, as amended, Directors also receive (i) an up-front
grant of 3,000 shares of restricted common stock, which becomes unrestricted over four years, (ii) options
to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock that vest equally over three years, with annual grants of 10,000
options after the initial vesting period, and (iii) shares of restricted common stock equal to ten times the
annual retainer paid to Directors which vests 50% at five years and 10% per year thereafter for the next
5 years, and immediately upon certain events. The options have value for Directors only if the price of our
common stock appreciates from the date of the option grant. Non-employee Directors who were Directors
of Old U S WEST are also entitled to their vested pension on the Separation Date.



Executive Change of Control and Termination Arrangements

We have entered into change of control agreements with certain of our executive officers, including
each of our named executive officers. By providing these executive officers with either compensation or
termination benefits or both, if a change of control of the Company occurs, these agreements encourage
these executive officers to continue to perform their duties after the announcement of a change of control.
The following discussion is a summary of such agreements. The actual forms of the agreements have been
filed as exhibits to our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In certain circumstances, the officers are entitled to receive specified benefits upon termination of
their employment or if their duties or compensation and benefits are reduced or substantially changed in
another manner after a change of control. Since the Chief Executive Officer’s duties necessarily are
significantly impacted as a result of a change of control, he may voluntarily resign within 90 days after a
change of control and receive his benefits.

What is a Change of Control?

Any of the following events is a change of control:

(i) a change of control that would have to be reported under Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, even if the Company is not subject to that reporting requirement;

(ii) a party or certain related parties directly or indirectly acquiring securities representing
twenty percent or more of the total voting power of the Company’s outstanding voting securities at
that time;

(iii) any period of two consecutive calendar years during which a majority of the Board of
Directors ceases to be composed of individuals who either (a) were a Director at the beginning of the
two-year period or (b) are a new Director whose election by the Board or nomination for election by
the Company’s shareholders was approved by at least two-thirds of the Directors who either were
Directors at the beginning of the two-year period or whose election or nomination for election was
previously so approved (and excluding for this purpose any individual whose initial assumption of
office resulted from an actual or threatened proxy contest);

(iv) shareholders of the Company approve a merger, consolidation, sale or other disposition of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, unless immediately afterwards the holders of the
Company’s voting securities prior to this change of control hold securities representing more than
seventy percent of the voting power of the outstanding voting securities of the Company or other
surviving entity at that time and, also immediately afterwards, no party or certain related parties
(other than trustees of employee benefit plans) hold twenty percent or more of the total voting power
of the Company’s outstanding voting securities at that time and members of the Board of Directors
prior to such transaction constitute more than half of the Company’s or other surviving entity’s Board
of Directors;

(v) the shareholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution; or

(vi) any other event that a majority of the Board of Directors deems to be a change of control.

Under the change of control agreements, termination benefits are to be paid immediately following
the officer’s termination, under certain circumstances, after a change of control. These benefits include
salary and payments under both short and long-term incentive plans in which the officers participate.
These benefit payments will be calculated as if a change of control had also occurred under these plans.

Termination benefits also consist of three times an amount equal to the sum of:

• the officer’s annual base salary before termination, plus
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• the officer’s annual bonus amount under any short-term incentive program in which the officer
participates (which will be calculated as if 100% of the target was achieved, unless the percentage
actually achieved is greater than 100%, in which case the higher percentage shall apply), plus

• for the Chief Executive Officer, the annual long-term incentive grant value under any long-term
incentive program in which he participates (also calculated as if 100% of the target was achieved,
unless the percentage actually achieved is greater than 100%, in which case the higher percentage
shall apply).

In addition, all unvested stock options (
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except as described below) held by the officer on the termination
date will vest immediately and be fully exercisable, and any restrictions on restricted stock will immediately
lapse. Options granted after the announcement of the Qwest merger will not immediately vest upon the
Qwest merger but would immediately vest upon a subsequent change of control. The Company will adjust
income in order to cover any excise taxes incurred in connection with the benefits paid upon termination.
The change of control agreements also provide for continued health care benefits on terms substantially
similar to those that would have been provided if the officer were eligible for retiree health care benefits
immediately before the change of control. If pension benefits are not already vested, they will vest
immediately before the change of control and an additional three years will be added to both the officer’s
age and years of service for the purpose of calculating the officer’s benefits.

Automatic Renewal; Cancellation

The change of control agreements automatically renew every three years. However, the Board of
Directors may cancel them before renewal by giving the officers notice at least 90 days before the
approaching three-year renewal date.

Chief Executive Officer’s Covenant Not To Compete

In exchange for receiving these benefits on a change of control, the Chief Executive Officer has
agreed he will not, for a three-year period after his termination:

(i) directly or indirectly engage in the United States, in any business that competes with the
Company’s business as of his termination date or at any time during such three-year period (certain
investments of not more than two percent are nonetheless permissible);

(ii) solicit, entice or endeavor to solicit or entice away from the Company or its subsidiaries any
person who was an officer, employee or sales representative either for his own account or for another
individual, firm or corporation, even if as a result of leaving the Company or its subsidiaries, such
officer, employee or sales representative would not breach his or her employment contract with the
Company;

(iii) directly or indirectly employ any person who was an officer, employee or sales representative
of the Company or its subsidiaries or who, by reason of such position at any time, possesses or may
likely possess any confidential information or trade secrets relating to the Company’s or its subsidiar-
ies’ businesses or products; and

(iv) solicit, entice or endeavor to solicit or entice away from the Company or its subsidiaries any
of the Company’s customers or prospective customers, either for his own account or for another
individual, firm or corporation.

Many of these restrictions also apply to other officers of U S WEST.

Executive Severance Agreements

We have also entered into executive severance agreements with certain of our officers, including the
named executive officers. These agreements set forth benefits that are payable in certain circumstances,
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including a change of control of the Company, an officer’s termination that is not for cause, an officer’s
termination in connection with a downsizing, or an officer’s resignation after electing not to accept a
reassignment to a non-comparable position.

In general, if an officer’s employment is terminated as a result of certain circumstances set forth in the
agreements, he or she will be entitled to the following severance benefits:

(i) a sum equal to between 1.5 and 2 times, depending upon the officer, of his or her base salary;

(ii) amounts due under the Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan and any long-term incentive
plan, based on the officer’s date of termination and calculated as if each plan’s applicable targeted
performance levels had been fully achieved; and

(iii) financial counseling services through the year after the year in which the officer was
terminated, or the cash value of such financial counseling services.

Restrictions placed on certain grants of common stock issued to the officer would be terminated and
the vesting of a proportionate amount of the officer’s stock options would be accelerated. In addition,
terminated officers are entitled to certain medical, dental and vision benefits. The agreements also contain
certain confidentiality and arbitration provisions. Before receiving severance benefits, an executive officer
must deliver to the Company a waiver and a release of claims. If a change of control occurs, the executive
severance agreements will be superseded by any applicable change of control agreement, as supplemented
by the terms and conditions of any option or restricted stock agreement.

In order to encourage Messrs. Winn’s, Zell’s and Kelley’s continued employment, they received
30,000, 25,000 and 25,000 shares, respectively, of restricted U S WEST common stock in tandem with a
grant of 300,000, 250,000 and 250,000 options, respectively, in August of 1998 which cliff vest four years
from the date of grant, all pursuant to their 1998 retention agreements. Upon vesting, each executive will
only be entitled to receive one of the tandem grants with the other grant being forfeited. These agreements
also entitle Messrs. Winn, Zell and Kelley to annual cash payments, which are conditioned on their
respective continuous employment until such payments are due. Messrs. Winn, Zell and Kelley each
received an annual cash payment of $40,000 in 1999 under such agreements, and each will receive annual
cash payments of $60,000 and $100,000, respectively, in 2000 and 2001.

In order to encourage Ms. Bernard’s continued employment, she received 25,000 shares of restricted
U S WEST common stock in tandem with a grant of 250,000 options in February of 1999 which cliff vest
four years from the date of grant, all pursuant to a 1999 stock and option agreement. Upon vesting,
Ms. Bernard will only be entitled to receive one of the tandem grants with the other grant being forfeited.

Modification of Change of Control Agreements

In connection with the anticipated merger with Qwest, the Human Resources Committee of the
U S WEST Board approved and the U S WEST Board ratified various retention agreements and
arrangements for Mr. Trujillo and for certain executive officers (including named executive officers) and
certain other key executives and critical employees of U S WEST. The purpose for such retention awards
and grants was to provide additional incentives to individuals who are critical to the business both in terms
of completing the merger and beyond, and who are likely targets for competitive offers from other
companies.

In order to provide retention incentives for Mr. Trujillo and given the demand for senior executives in
the telecommunications industry, the Human Resources Committee approved and the U S WEST Board
ratified the terms of a retention agreement with Mr. Trujillo. The retention agreement with Mr. Trujillo
modifies the current terms of his change of control agreement and expires on August 31, 2003 or earlier if
U S WEST and Qwest cease their efforts to complete the merger. Termination or expiration of the
retention agreement will not affect any rights that would have accrued to Mr. Trujillo before the date of
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termination. Under the retention agreement, Mr. Trujillo agreed (i) not to engage, directly or indirectly,
within the United States, in any business that is competitive with U S WEST or the combined company for
a period of eighteen months following his separation from employment for any reason and (ii) for the same
period not to solicit or entice away any employee, sales representative or customer from U S WEST or the
combined company. This non-compete provision is broader than the non-compete provision in
Mr. Trujillo’s change of control agreement. Mr. Trujillo also agreed under the retention agreement that
mandatory arbitration would apply to all disputes with respect to the retention agreement and to his
change of control agreement. In connection with Mr. Trujillo’s agreement not to compete, not to solicit
and to mandatorily arbitrate any disputes with U S WEST, and to further provide retention incentives for
his employment, the Human Resources Committee approved and the U S WEST Board ratified grants of
options and restricted stock to Mr. Trujillo that were described in U S WEST’s Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A dated September 17, 1999 (the ‘‘Merger Proxy Statement’’).

The retention agreements for the named executive officers also modify the current terms of their
respective change of control agreements and expire on December 21, 2001 or earlier if U S WEST and
Qwest cease their efforts to complete the merger. Termination or expiration of the executive officers’
retention agreements will also not affect any rights that would have accrued to them before the date of
termination or expiration. Under their retention agreements, the named executive officers agreed to
mandatory arbitration of all disputes which also would apply to their change of control agreements. In
connection with these retention agreements, the Human Resources Committee also approved retention
cash awards and option and restricted stock grants to the named executive officers as described in the
Merger Proxy Statement.



Report of Human Resources Committee on Executive Compensation

Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors is made up of independent outside
Directors who meet regularly to oversee executive compensation and benefits plans. The Human
Resources Committee makes every effort to ensure that executive compensation and benefit plans are both
appropriately competitive with the marketplace and aligned with your interests as a shareholder. The
Human Resources Committee submits reports to the full Board of Directors concerning its activities and
decisions. None of the Human Resources Committee’s Directors has interlocking or other relationships
with other boards or the Company that would call into question his or her independence as a Human
Resources Committee member.

Compensation Philosophy; Overall Principles

The Company takes an integrated and managed approach to developing its executive compensation
strategy and programs. This approach balances the overall needs of the Company, including its unique
business strategies and human resources initiatives. The Human Resources Committee has approved a
compensation plan designed to attract, motivate and retain the high-caliber executives needed to achieve
the Company’s business strategies. The plan rewards those executives for building and enhancing long-
term value for Company shareholders.

Each element of the compensation plan supports the Company’s mission, values and culture. The
following compensation principles link the individual elements into an integrated compensation strategy:

(i) creating and maintaining a compensation structure that aligns the interests and concerns of
executives with those of shareholders;

(ii) providing competitive compensation that is comparable to compensation provided by the
industry and our peer companies;

(iii) developing and maintaining customized business unit plans that reflect the unique character-
istics of the Company’s diversified operations;

(iv) providing individual compensation that is highly correlated with personal performance and
the creation of shareholder value; and

(v) implementing executive development and succession planning programs to provide for long-
term organizational strength and flexibility.

Overall, the Human Resources Committee believes that the Company’s competitive market for
executive talent is more comprehensive than those established by industry peer groups to compare
shareholder returns, as are set forth on the accompanying Performance Graphs. Accordingly, the popula-
tion of companies surveyed for compensation data extends beyond the companies included in peer group
indices set forth in the Performance Graphs.

For each component of compensation, the Human Resources Committee targets total compensation
to industry median benchmarks of surveyed companies. As a result, superior performance will lead to
above-market total compensation delivered through variable-pay components, and less-than-satisfactory
performance will result in below-market total compensation.

Key Elements

The key elements of the Company’s executive compensation program are base salary, annual
incentives, and long-term incentive compensation. In developing an executive’s total compensation pack-
age, the Human Resources Committee considers each of these key elements, as well as retirement benefits,
insurance, and limited perquisites.
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Base Salary

The Company has implemented a combined market and performance-based salary structure for its
executive employees. Determination of appropriate compensation is based on the following factors:

• the executive’s level of responsibility,

• the scope and impact of decision-making, and

• internal and external comparability.

For purposes of comparability and competitive market pricing, the Company uses annual executive
compensation salary surveys that are prepared by nationally recognized independent compensation
consulting firms. These surveys encompass the telecommunications industry as well as companies of similar
size in other industries. On average, the Company seeks to target executive base salary levels at the median
range of the surveyed companies.

Executive salary reviews generally are conducted on a 12-month cycle. Base salary adjustments may
occur at the time of these reviews and depend upon individual performance results, changes in job
responsibilities, competitive forces, and/or the overall financial condition of the Company.

Mr. Trujillo’s base salary 
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for 1999 was $900,000. Mr. Trujillo’s current base salary places him within the
median range of surveyed companies.

Short-Term Incentive Compensation

The Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan, which was approved by shareholders in May 1994 and
ratified as part of the Separation by the Company, provides each named executive officer with the
potential to earn annual cash awards based on the achievement of pre-established performance goals.
Participants include the Chief Executive Officer and any individual employed by the Company at the end
of any calendar year who appears in the Summary Compensation Table of the Annual Proxy Statement to
Shareholders. The cash bonus pool from which the Company pays the bonuses for the Chief Executive
Officer and the other named executive officers is limited to 0.25% of ‘‘Cash Provided by Operating
Activities’’ for the annual performance period. The Human Resources Committee may pay any portion of
this pool based on various factors, including the Company’s performance relative to pre-set financial,
strategic and customer goals, as well as individual performance goals. Any amount of the cash bonus pool
not paid in this manner may be added, at the Human Resources Committee’s sole discretion, to the cash
bonus pool that is available for any subsequent year or combination of years. The Human Resources
Committee has elected not to add unpaid portions of the cash bonus pool to the bonus pool for
future years.

The pre-set performance goals for 1999 were based on various factors including the Company’s net
cash flow, operating income, revenue, service and independent customers’ analysis of the reputation of the
Company (CVA or Customer Value Analysis).

In determining the amount to be paid to Mr. Trujillo in connection with 1999 performance goals, the
Human Resources Committee considered the above-mentioned pre-set performance goals for the Com-
pany and individual performance. Mr. Trujillo received Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan compensation
of $1,025,000, or 113% of his 1999 base salary.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

For 1999, the Company’s long-term incentive compensation program was comprised of stock options
issued under the U S WEST 1998 Stock Plan and performance-based Dividend Equivalent Units
previously issued under Long-Term Incentive Plans approved in prior years. Shareholders have previously
approved all three plans.
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During the past year, the combination of stock options and performance-based long-term incentive
opportunities provided a strategic mix of equity-based incentives that:

• continues to focus performance on the attainment of long-term strategic objectives;

• provides an incentive to the executives to increase total shareholder return; and

• provides continuity throughout the officer team by rewarding long-term commitment to the
Company.

The Long-Term Incentive Plan

New grants of Dividend Equivalent Units under the Long-Term Incentive Plan were suspended in
1999; however payouts were made for Dividend Equivalent Units issued under that plan in prior years.

In general, the Human Resources Committee has assigned Dividend Equivalent Units to participants
in the Long-Term Incentive Plan at the beginning of each performance period. A ‘‘Dividend Equivalent
Unit’’ equaled the regular cash dividends, if any, that are paid on our common stock that is paid during a
performance period under the Long-Term Incentive Plan. The Long-Term Incentive Plan includes a three-
year performance period that ended on December 31, 1999. At the conclusion of each performance period,
participants may receive a percentage of the product of their respective Dividend Equivalent Units times
the total value of dividends paid during the performance period on one share of our common stock. The
percentage, which for the 1997-1999 performance period could not exceed 100%, is determined pursuant
to a performance formula established by the Human Resources Committee. This formula is based on one
or more of the Company’s financial results, productivity and efficiency measures, customer service, stock
performance and employee and management satisfaction measures. Under this formula, Mr. Trujillo
received 13,731 shares of our common stock worth $974,043.

Stock Options

In general, the Human Resources Committee has elected to grant stock options annually. The
Company’s stock option grants are designed to deliver, together with other long-term incentives, the
opportunity for the executive to earn a market-based percentage of salary dependent on future stock
performance. In determining the current year’s stock option grants, the Human Resources Committee may
take into consideration prior years’ grants and circumstances.

Stock options granted during 1999 have an exercise price equal to the market price of our common
stock on the date of grant and carry a ten-year term and, except in the retention grants described below,
vest in one-third increments beginning one year from the grant date.

In 1999, Mr. Trujillo received a stock option grant of 400,000 shares of common stock. The Human
Resources Committee believes that the grant to Mr. Trujillo in 1999 is consistent with its total compensa-
tion philosophy to link a substantial portion of the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation directly with
the long-term value created for shareholders. In addition, Mr. Trujillo’s option grant is consistent with the
average grants made to peer company chief executive officers as determined by market survey data. In
connection with our proposed merger with Qwest, Mr. Trujillo also received three million stock options
(one million in August 1999 and two million in January 2000) as a special incentive grant that will
incrementally vest over four years from the August 1999 grant date.

Restricted Stock

In connection with the proposed merger with Qwest, Mr. Trujillo also received 300,000 shares of
restricted stock which will vest, contingent upon the merger closing, 50 percent after two years, 75 percent
after three years and 100% after four years. For a further discussion of the terms of Mr. Trujillo’s retention
grants, please refer to the Merger Proxy Statement.
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Deductibility of Compensation; Tax Code Concerns

The Human Resources Committee has carefully considered Section 162 (m) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 and believes the Company’s pay-for-performance practices ensure that executive compensa-
tion is strongly tied to performance. The Human Resources Committee believes it is in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders to comply with the tax law while still preserving the flexibility to reward
executives consistent with the Company’s pay philosophy for each compensation element. The Human
Resources Committee is obligated to the Board of Directors and shareholders to recognize and reward
performance that increases the value of the Company. Accordingly, the Human Resources Committee will
exercise its discretion in those instances where tax law considerations would compromise the interests of
the shareholders.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

To encourage further growth in shareholder value, the Board of Directors has approved stock
ownership targets for the Company’s executive officers. The Board of Directors established these targets
because it believes that a significant level of stock ownership provides a powerful incentive to executive
officers to manage the Company as owners. On an annual basis, the Human Resources Committee reviews
executive officers’ stock ownership and, at its discretion, may consider such ownership in the granting of
restricted shares and stock options.

The target ownership level for the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer equals 5 times his base
salary. At the end of 1999, Mr. Trujillo held common stock valued at approximately 68 times his 1999
salary.

Conclusion

It is the Human Resources Committee’s opinion that the Company’s integrated executive compensa-
tion strategy aligns the Company’s executive compensation practices with corporate performance and your
best interests as a shareholder. The strategy does so by ensuring both the continuity and ongoing
development of a strong leadership team that is fully in line with our shareholders. We trust this letter and
the accompanying tables and graphs will help you understand further the Company’s compensation
philosophy, programs and actions.

U S WEST, Inc. Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors:

Frank Popoff (Chairman)
Hank Brown
Jerry J. Colangelo
Manuel A. Fernandez



Stockholder Return Performance Graphs

The graph and chart below compares the yearly change in cumulative total stockholder return on our
common stock since the Separation and Communications Group targeted stock from October 31, 1995 to
the Separation, including the reinvestment of dividends, with the return on the Standard & Poor’s 500
Stock Index, the S&P Telecommunications Index, and a customized peer group (the ‘‘Communications
Peer Group’’) that includes companies that offer communications services, including local telephone
services, to business and residential customers in domestic geographic markets. The performance graph
shows the return of $100 invested in Communications Group targeted stock on October 31, 1995, and
reflects a return for (i) Communications Group targeted stock from October 31, 1995 to the Separation,
which occurred on June 12, 1998, and (ii) U S WEST common stock for periods after the Separation to
December 31, 1999. In accordance with the Separation, holders of Communications Group targeted stock
received one share of U S WEST common stock for each share of Communications Group targeted stock.

Comparison of 50-Month Cumulative Total Return(a)

Among U S WEST/Communications Group, S&P 500 Stock Index,
S&P Telecommunications Index(b), and Communications Peer Group(c)
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U S WEST/Communications Group

S&P Telecommunications Index - Weighted
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Oct-95 Dec-95 Dec-96 Dec-97 Dec-98 Dec-99

U S WEST/Communications Group . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100 $124 $120 $177 $265 $308
S&P 500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 107 131 174 224 271
S&P Telecommunications Index—Weighted . . . . . . . . . 100 110 111 155 227 240
Communications Peer Group—Weighted . . . . . . . . . . . 100 109 111 15
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4 224 237

Notes.

(a) Total return assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

(b) Consists of returns weighted by market capitalization of Alltel, Bell Atlantic, BellSouth, Centurytel, GTE and SBC
Communications.

(c) Consists of returns weighted by market capitalization of Alltel, BellSouth, GTE, Nynex, Pacific Telesis, SBC Communications
and Southern New England Telecommunications. Pacific Telesis, Southern New England Telecommunications and Ameritech
were acquired by SBC Communications on April 1, 1997; October 26, 1998; and October 8, 1999, respectively. The total
shareholder returns of the acquired companies parallel that of SBC Communications after such dates. Nynex was acquired by
Bell Atlantic on August 14, 1997. The total shareholder return of Nynex parallels that of Bell Atlantic after such date. Frontier
and Cincinnati Bell, both companies contained in last year’s peer group, were acquired by companies outside of the peer group
and thus omitted from this year’s total shareholder return calculation.
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Assumes $100 invested on October 31, 1995 in Communications Group targeted stock, the Stan-
dard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, the S&P Telecommunications Index, and the Communications Peer Group.

The graph and chart below compares the quarterly change in cumulative total stockholder return on
our common stock since the Separation, including the reinvestment of dividends, with the return on the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index, the S&P Telecommunications Index, and the Communications Peer
Group. The performance graph shows the return of $100 invested in our common stock for quarterly
periods after the Separation to December 31, 1999.

Comparison of 18-Month Cumulative Total Return(a)
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S&P 500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 90 109 115 123 115 132
S&P Telecommunications Index—Weighted . . 100 108 133 121 147 142 141
Communications Peer Group—Weighted . . . . 100 107 133 120 148 143 138

Notes.

(a) Total return assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

(b) Consists of returns weighted by market capitalization of Alltel, Bell Atlantic, BellSouth, Centurytel, GTE, and SBC
Communications.

(c) Consists of returns weighted by market capitalization of Alltel, Ameritech, Bell Atlantic, BellSouth, GTE, Nynex, Pacific Telesis,
SBC Communications and Southern New England Telecommunications. Pacific Telesis, Southern New England Telecommunica-
tions and Ameritech were acquired by SBC Communications on April 1, 1997; October 26, 1998; and October 8, 1999,
respectively. The total shareholder returns of the acquired companies parallel that of SBC Communications after such dates.
Nynex was acquired by Bell Atlantic on August 14, 1997. The total shareholder return of Nynex parallels that of Bell Atlantic
after such date. Frontier and Cincinnati Bell, both companies contained in last year’s peer group, were acquired by companies
outside of the peer group and thus omitted from this year’s total shareholder return calculation.

Assumes $100 invested on June 30, 1998 in our common stock, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock
Index, the S&P Telecommunications Index, and the Communications Peer Group.



ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth the information concerning shares of common stock beneficially owned
by each Director and named executive officer of U S WEST as of December 31, 1999 (or as of such other
date as may be specified) and by the Directors and executive officers of U S WEST as a group. These
shares represent less than one percent of the outstanding shares of U S WEST common stock. Fractional
shares have been rounded to the nearest whole share.

Shares Subject
to Options** Share Equivalents

Total Number (Included in Held in Deferred
Name of Shares* Total) Savings Plan/ESOP Compensation Plans***

Linda G. Alvarado . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,986(1) 10,000
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— 2,740
Craig R. Barrett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,072(1) 10,000 — —
Betsy J. Bernard . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67,313 33,832 — 5,694
Hank Brown . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,464(2) 10,000 — 2,916
Jerry J. Colangelo . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,273(1) 10,000 — —
Manuel A. Fernandez . . . . . . . . . . 9,601(3) — — 1,690
George J. Harad . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,885(1)(4) 13,000 — 3,976
Peter S. Hellman . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,386(1) 10,000 — 2,721
John A. Kelley, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . 132,305 82,995 839 518
Marilyn C. Nelson . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,386(1)(5) 22,000 — 10,502
Frank Popoff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39,470(1) 16,000 — 1,385
Solomon D. Trujillo . . . . . . . . . . . 909,355(6) 558,890 3,030 15,801
Gregory M. Winn . . . . . . . . . . . . . 159,175 106,564(7) 4,524 3,937
Joseph R. Zell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 99,535 59,550 1,632 667
All Directors and executive

officers of U S WEST (as a
group) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,922,430 1,187,259 23,167 68,525

* Includes shares subject to acquisition through exercise of stock options within 60 days and equivalent Savings Plan/ESOP shares.
** Shares subject to acquisition through exercise of stock options within 60 days.
*** Includes units denominated as common share equivalents held in deferred compensation accounts.
(1) Includes 8,700 unvested shares of restricted stock granted as part of director compensation.
(2) Includes 7,887 unvested shares of restricted stock granted as part of director compensation.
(3) Includes 8,700 unvested shares of restricted stock granted as part of director compensation.
(4) Includes 40 shares subject to shared voting and investment power.
(5) Includes 3,002 shares subject to shared voting and investment power.
(6) Includes 300,000 shares of restricted U S WEST common stock as part of the August 1999 merger retention plan.
(7) Includes 2,250 shares subject to options held by spouse.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 1999, information with respect to each person who
was known by U S WEST (based upon a review of schedules and reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the ‘‘Commission’’)) to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of U S WEST’s
common stock.

Reported
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares Percent of Class

Capital Research and Management Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45,304,700 9.0%
333 South Hope Street
Los Angeles, California 90071-1447

State Street Bank and Trust Company, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,828,145 6.28%
as trustee for the U S WEST Savings Plan/ESOP
225 Franklin Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our Directors and executive officers,
and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock, to file with the Commission, the New York
Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange reports of ownership and changes in ownership of common stock
and other equity securities of the Company. Executive officers, Directors and greater than 10% sharehold-
ers are required by Commission regulation to furnish to us copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on a review of the copies of Section 16(a) forms furnished to us and written representa-
tions that no other filings were required, U S WEST believes that all Commission filing requirements
applicable to its executive officers, Directors and greater than 10% shareholders were complied with for
1999.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Alvarado Construction Inc. (‘‘Alvarado Construction’’). In February 2000, one of the Company’s
subsidiaries entered into a master professional services agreement with Alvarado Construction to provide
project management services for certain of our high speed data initiatives and buildouts. Linda G.
Alvarado is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Alvarado Construction and is a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The agreement expires in February 2002 and specific projects will be
evidenced by separate statements of work. As of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, one
statement of work (and associated work order) had been entered into between the parties for an amount of
approximately $1.5 million. The engagement of Alvarado Construction was approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors, and management believes that the engagement has been structured on an arm’s-length
basis.

For a discussion of other related transactions required to be disclosed under this item, you should
refer to Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements on page F-26.

PART IV

ITEM 14. Financial Statement Schedules, Reports on Form 8-K and Exhibits

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
Page

(i) Report of Independent Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-1
(ii) Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 1999,
1998 and 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-2 and F-3

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 . . . . . . . . . F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,

1999, 1998 and 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data . . . . . F-7 through F-29

(iii) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule:
Report of Independent Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-30
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . F-31

Financial statement schedules other than those listed above have been omitted because the required
information is contained in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto or because such
schedules are not required or applicable.



(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

U S WEST filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 1999 and through the
filing of this Form 10-K:

(i) Form 8-K dated October 22, 1999 providing notification of the release of third quarter earnings
of U S WEST.

(ii) Form 8-K dated November 2, 1999 providing notification of a press release announcing results of
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the November 2, 1999 special shareholders meeting regarding the Qwest Merger.

(iii) Form 8-K dated January 4, 2000 providing notification of a press release announcing the Global
Crossing Shares Monetization.

(iv) Form 8-K dated January 26, 2000 providing notification of the release of fourth quarter earnings
of U S WEST.

(v) Form 8-K dated February 29, 2000 providing notification of a press release announcing our
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer’s decision not to join Qwest upon the comple-
tion of the merger.

(c) Exhibits:

Exhibits identified in parentheses below are on file with the Commission and are incorporated herein
by reference. All other exhibits are provided as part of this electronic submission.

Exhibit
Number

(2-A) —Separation Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. (renamed ‘‘MediaOne Group, Inc.’’)
and U S WEST, Inc. (formerly USW-C, Inc.), dated June 5, 1998 (Exhibit 99.1 to Form
8-K/A dated June 26, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(2-A.1) —Amendment to the Separation Agreement between MediaOne Group, Inc. (formerly
U S WEST, Inc.) and U S WEST, Inc. (formerly USW-C, Inc.) dated June 12, 1998
(Exhibit 10(p) to Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 1998, File
No. 1-14087).

(2-A.2) —Offer to Purchase; Letter of Transmittal relating to the Common Stock; Letter to
Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees; Letter
from Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees to
Clients, Notices of Guaranteed Delivery relating to the Common Stock; Press Release
issued by the Offeror and the Company on May 17, 1999; and Guidelines for Certificate
of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9, each dated May 21, 1999
(Exhibits (a)(1) through (a)(7) to Schedule 14D-1, dated May 21, 1999, as amended).

(2-A.3) —Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global Crossing Ltd.
and U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit 2 to Form 8-K, dated May 21, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(2-A.4) —Tender Offer and Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global
Crossing Ltd. and U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit (c)(2) to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule
13-D, dated May 21, 1999, as amended).

(2-A.5) —Voting Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global Crossing Ltd. and
U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit (c)(3) to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated May 21,
1999, as amended).

(2-A.6) —Standstill Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global Crossing Ltd. and
U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit (c)(4) to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated May 21,
1999, as amended).
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Exhibit
Number

(2-A.7) —Tender and Voting Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between U S WEST, Inc.,
Global Crossing Ltd. and each of the parties listed on the signature page thereto
(Exhibit (c)(5) to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated May 21, 1999, as amended).

(2-A.8) —Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global Crossing Ltd. and each person
whose name appears on the signature page thereto (Exhibit (c)(6) to Schedule 14D-1
and Schedule 13D, dated May 21, 1999, as amended).

(2-A.9) —Letter Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between U S WEST, Inc. and Global
Crossing Ltd. (Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K, dated May 21, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(2-A.10) —Transfer Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between Global Crossing Ltd. and each
person whose name appears on the signature page thereto (Exhibit (c)(8) to Schedule
14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated May 21, 1999, as amended).

(2-A.11) —Agreement and Plan of Merger between U S WEST, Inc. and Qwest Communications
International Inc., dated as of July 18, 1999 and amended by Amendment No. 1, dated
as of September 8, 1999 (Annex A to Schedule 14A dated September 17, 1999).

(2-A.12) —Voting Agreement among each of the stockholders listed on the signature page thereto
and U S WEST, Inc., dated as of July 18, 1999 (Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, dated July 20,
1999, File No. 1-14087).

(2-A.13) —Termination Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. and Global Crossing Ltd., dated as of
July 18, 1999 (Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K, dated July 20, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(2-A.14) —Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 18, 1999, to Tender Offer and Purchase Agreement,
dated as of May 16, 1999, between U S WEST, Inc. and Global Crossing Ltd.
(Exhibit 2-A.14 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(3-A) —Restated Certificate of Incorporation of U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit 3(A) to Form S-4/A
Registration Statement No. 333-45765, filed March 18, 1998).

(3-B) —Bylaws of U S WEST, Inc. effective as of June 12, 1998 (Exhibit 3(ii) to Form 8-K/A
dated June 26, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(4-A.1) —Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, dated as of May 16, 1999 (Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K, dated May 21,
1999, File No. 1-14087).

(4-A.2) —Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, dated as of July 18, 1999 (Exhibit 4-A.2 to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(4-A.3) —Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 20, 1999, between U S WEST Capital
Funding, Inc., U S WEST, Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated (Exhibit 4-A.3 to Form S-4 Registration Statement No.
333-92523, filed December 10, 1999).

(4-B) —Indenture, dated as of June 29, 1998, by and among U S WEST Capital Funding, Inc.,
U S WEST, Inc. and The First National Bank of Chicago (now known as Bank One
Trust Company, National Association) as Trustee (Exhibit 4(a) to Form 8-K dated
November 18, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-A) —Employee Matters Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. (renamed MediaOne Group,
Inc.) and USW-C, Inc. (renamed U S WEST, Inc.), dated June 5, 1998 (Exhibit 99.2 to
Form 8-K/A dated June 26, 1998, File No. 1-14087).
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Exhibit
Number

(10-B) —Tax Sharing Agreement between U S WEST, Inc. (renamed MediaOne Group, Inc.) and
USW-C, Inc. (renamed U S WEST, Inc.), dated June 5, 1998 (Exhibit 99.3 to
Form 8-K/A dated June 26, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-C) —364-Day Credit Agreement, dated May 8, 1998, with Morgan Guaranty Trust Company
of New York, as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10A to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-D) —Five Year Credit Agreement, dated May 8, 1998, with Morgan Guaranty Trust Company
of New York, as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10B to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-D.1) —Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreements dated as of June 30, 1998 to the 364-Day
Credit Agreement and the Five Year Credit Agreement, each dated as of May 8, 1998,
among U S WEST Capital Funding, Inc., U S WEST, Inc., the banks listed on the
signature pages thereto and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York
(Exhibit 10(e)(1) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File
No. 1-14087).

(10-D.2) —Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 7, 1999, among U S WEST
Capital Funding, Inc., U S WEST, Inc. and the banks listed on the signature pages
thereof (Exhibit (b)(4) to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated May 21, 1999, as
amended).

(10-D.3) —Amendment to Credit Agreements, dated as of June 11, 1999, which further amends
(i) the 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as of May 8, 1999, as amended and (ii) the Five
Year Credit Agreement dated as of May 8, 1998, as amended, among U S WEST
Capital Funding, Inc., U S WEST, Inc., the banks listed on the signature pages thereto,
and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York (Exhibit 10-D.3 to Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10D.4) —364-Day $1.5 billion Credit Agreement dated as of June 11, 1999, among U S WEST
Capital Funding, Inc., U S WEST, Inc., the banks listed therein and Morgan Guaranty
Trust Company of New York, as administrative agent (Exhibit (b)(6) to Amendment No.
3 to Schedule 14D-1 and Schedule 13D, dated June 11, 1999, filed on behalf of Global
Crossing Ltd. and U S WEST, Inc.).

(10-D.5) —Assignment and Assumption Agreement among each institution listed on Schedule 1
thereto, U S WEST, Inc. and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, dated as
of July 6, 1999 (Exhibit 10-D.5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999, File
No. 1-14087).

(10-E) —364-Day Credit Agreement, among the banks listed therein, U S WEST
Communications, Inc. and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as
administrative agent, dated as of May 19, 1999 (Exhibit 10-E to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-F) —Amendment No. 1 to the 364-Day Credit Agreement, dated as of May 19, 1998, among
U S WEST Communications, Inc., U S WEST, Inc., the banks listed on the signature
pages thereto and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as administrative
agent, dated as of June 11, 1999 (Exhibit 10-F to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-G)* —Change of Control Agreement for the President and Chief Executive Officer of
U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit 10(f) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, File
No. 1-14087).
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Exhibit
Number

(10-G.1)* —Retention Agreement for the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of
U S WEST, Inc., dated as of September 7, 1999 (Exhibit 10-G.1 to Form 8-K dated
September 20, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-H)* —Form of Change of Control Agreement for Tier II Executives of U S WEST, Inc.
(Exhibit 10(g) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-H.1)* —Form of Retention Agreement for Executive Officers of U S WEST, Inc. (Exhibit 10-H.1
to Form 8-K dated September 20, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-I)* —Form of Executive Severance Agreement (Exhibit 10(h) to Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-J)* —1998 U S WEST Stock Plan (Exhibit 10-A to the Form S-4 Registration Statement No.
333-45765, filed February 6, 1998, as amended).

(10-K)* —U S WEST Long-Term Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10-D to the Form S-4 Registration
Statement No. 333-45765, filed February 6, 1998, as amended).

(10-L)* —U S WEST Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10-E to the Form S-4
Registration Statement No. 333-45765, filed February 6, 1998, as amended).

(10-M)* —U S WEST 1998 Broad Based Stock Option Plan dated June 12, 1998 (Exhibit 10(l) to
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-N)* —U S WEST Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated effective as of June 12,
1998 (Exhibit 10(m) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File
No. 1-14087).

(10-O)* —U S WEST 1998 Stock Plan, as amended June 22, 1998 (Exhibit 10(n) to Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No. 1-14087).

(10-O.1)* —1998 U S WEST Stock Plan, as amended August 6, 1999 (Exhibit 10-O.1 to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-O.2)* —1999 U S WEST Stock Plan as amended August 6, 1999 (Exhibit 10-O.2 to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-P)* —Shareowner Investment Plan dated June 12, 1998 (Form S-3 Registration Statement
No. 333-52781, filed May 15, 1998).

(10-Q)* —Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Exhibit 10-Q to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

(10-R) —Form of Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Telephone Exchanges, dated as of June 16,
1999, between Citizens Utilities Company and U S WEST Communications, Inc.
(Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K, dated June 17, 1999, File No. 1-14087).

12 —Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

18 —Preferability Letter on Change of Accounting Principles.

21 —Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 —Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP.

24 —Powers of Attorney.

27 —Financial Data Schedule.

(99) —Annual Report on Form 11-K for the U S WEST Savings Plan/ESOP for the year ended
December 31, 1999 to be filed by amendment to this Form 10-K.

(*) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Denver, State of Colorado, on 
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March 3, 2000.

U S WEST, Inc.

By: /s/ ALLAN R. SPIES

Allan R. Spies
Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Principal Executive Officer

/S/ Solomon D. Trujillo President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Financial Officer:

/S/ Allan R. Spies Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer:

/S/ Janet K. Cooper Vice President-Finance and Controller

Directors:

/S/ Solomon D. Trujillo Chairman of the Board

/S/ Linda G. Alvarado

/S/ Craig R. Barrett

/S/ The Honorable Hank Brown

/S/ Jerry J. Colangelo

/S/ Manuel A. Fernandez

/S/ George J. Harad

/S/ Peter S. Hellman

/S/ Marilyn C. Nelson

/S/ Frank Popoff

Dated: March 3, 2000



ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998(5) 1997(5) 1996 1995

(dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 13,182 $ 12,395 $ 11,521 $ 11,168 $ 10,508
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,845 9,346 8,745 8,356 7,931
Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,337 3,049 2,776 2,812 2,577
Income before extraordinary item and

cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,102 1,508 1,527 1,501 1,431

Net income(2,3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,342 1,508 1,524 1,535 1,423
Historical earnings per share:(4)

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.66 3.05 3.16 3.21 3.02
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.63 3.02 3.1
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2 3.17 2.98
Average common shares outstanding

(thousands):
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 504,423 494,395 482,751 477,549 470,716
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 509,306 498,798 491,232 488,591 481,933

Dividends per common share(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.36 $ 2.14 $ 2.14 $ 2.14 $ 2.14
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,216 18,407 17,667 17,279 16,960
Total debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,071 9,919 5,715 6,545 6,782
Debt to total capital ratio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 91.2% 92.9% 56.7% 61.6% 65.0%
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,218 $ 2,905 $ 2,672 $ 2,831 $ 2,770
Telephone network access lines in service

(thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,009 16,601 16,033 15,424 14,795
Billed access minutes of use (millions):

Interstate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,854 58,927 55,362 52,039 47,801
Intrastate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,022 12,366 11,729 10,451 9,504

Total employees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58,272 54,483 51,110 51,477 54,552
Telephone company employees . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,352 46,310 43,749 45,427 47,934
Telephone company employees per 10,000

access lines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27.3 27.9 27.3 29.5 32.4

(1) 1999 income includes terminated merger-related expenses of $282 ($0.56 per diluted share) related to the Global Crossing
merger termination, a loss of $225 ($0.44 per diluted share) on the sale of shares of Global Crossing common stock and a charge
of $34 ($0.07 per diluted share) on the decline in the market value of derivative financial instruments. 1998 income includes
Separation expenses of $68 ($0.13 per diluted share) associated with the Separation of Old U S WEST into two independent
companies and an asset impairment charge of $21 ($0.04 per diluted share). 1997 income includes a $152 regulatory charge
($0.31 per diluted share) related primarily to the 1997 Washington State Supreme Court ruling that upheld a Washington rate
order, a gain of $32 ($0.07 per diluted share) on the sale of the Company’s 1⁄7th interest in Bell Communications Research, Inc.
(‘‘Bellcore’’) and a gain of $48 ($0.10 per diluted share) on the sales of local telephone exchanges. 1996 income includes a gain of
$36 ($0.07 per diluted share) on the sales of local telephone exchanges and the current effect of $15 ($0.03 per diluted share)
from adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (‘‘FAS’’) No. 121, ‘‘Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.’’ 1995 income includes a gain of $85 ($0.18 per diluted share) on the sales of
local telephone exchanges and costs of $8 ($0.02 per diluted share) associated with the 1995 Recapitalization discussed in
footnote 4 below.

(2) 1999 net income includes $240 ($0.47 per diluted share) for the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle related to
recognizing directory publishing revenues and expenses from the ‘‘deferral method’’ to the ‘‘point of publication’’ method. See
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. 1997 net income was reduced by an extraordinary charge of $3 ($0.01 per diluted
share) for the early extinguishment of debt. 1996 net income includes a gain of $34 ($0.07 per diluted share) for the cumulative
effect of the adoption of FAS No. 121. 1995 net income was reduced by an extraordinary charge of $8 ($0.02 per diluted share)
for the early extinguishment of debt.
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(3) For 1998, pro forma net income, assuming the incremental interest expense associated with the Dex Indebtedness was incurred
from the beginning of the year through the Separation and approximately 16,341,000 shares of common stock (net of the
redemption of approximately 305,000 fractional shares) issued in connection with the Dex Alignment had been issued at the
beginning of the year, would have been $1,436 ($2.86 per basic share or $2.84 per diluted share).

(4) The historical average shares outstanding assume a one-for-one conversion of historical Communications Group common shares
outstanding into shares of U S WEST as of the Separation date. The 1998 historical average common shares outstanding include
the issuance of approximately 16,341,000 shares of common stock (net of redemption of approximately 305,000 fractional shares)
issued in connection with the Dex Alignment. Effective November 1, 1995, each share of common stock of Old U S WEST was
converted into one share each of Communications Group common stock and Media Group common stock (the ‘‘1995
Recapitalization’’). Earnings per common share and dividends per common share for 1995 have been presented on a pro forma
basis to reflect the two classes of stock as if they had been outstanding since January 1, 1995.

(5) Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Special Note: Certain statements set forth below under this caption constitute ‘‘forward-looking
statements’’ within the meaning of the Reform Act. See ‘‘Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements’’ on page 1 for additional factors relating to such statements.

Results of Operations

1999 Compared with 1998

Several non-recurring and non-operating items impacted net income in 1999 and 1998. Results of
operations for the two years, normalized to exclude the effects of such items, are as follows:

Increase
1999 1998 (Decrease)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,342 $1,508 $ (166) (11.0)%
Pro forma adjustment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (72) 72 100.0
Non-recurring and non-operating items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 301 89 212 238.2

Normalized pro forma income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,643 $1,525 $ 118 7.7%

Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.63 $ 3.02 $(0.39) (12.9)%
Pro forma adjustment(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (0.18) 0.18 100.0
Non-recurring and non-operating items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.60 0.17 0.43 252.9

Normalized pro forma diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.23 $ 3.01 $ 0.22 7.3%

(1) Reflects incremental (after-tax) interest expense associated with the Dex Indebtedness from the beginning of 1998 up to the
Separation date.

(2) Reflects the issuance of approximately 16,341,000 shares of common stock (net of the redemption of approximately 305,000
fractional shares) issued in connection with the Dex Alignment as if the shares had been issued as of the beginning of 1998.

Non-recurring and non-operating items in 1999 include:

• an after-tax charge of $282 or $0.56 per diluted share for Global Crossing terminated merger-
related expenses,

• an after-tax charge of $225 or $0.44 per diluted share for the loss on the sale of Global Crossing
common stock,

• an after-tax charge of $34 or $0.07 per diluted share for the decline in the market value of derivative
financial instruments associated with the sale of Global Crossing common stock, and
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• an after-tax benefit of $240 or $0.47 per diluted share representing the cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle applicable to the change in accounting method for directory publishing
revenues and expenses.

Non-recurring and non-operating items in 1998 include:

• an after-tax charge of $68 or $0.13 per diluted share for Separation costs, and

• an after-tax charge of $21 or $0.04 per diluted share related to the impairment of certain long-lived
assets.

The following sections provide a more detailed discussion of the changes in revenues and expenses.

Revenues

1999 1998 Increase

Local services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,746 $7,104 $642 9.0%

Local services revenues. Local services revenues include retail and wholesale basic monthly service
fees, fees for calling services such as voice messaging and caller identification, wireless revenues, subscriber
line charges, MegaBitTM data services, local number portability (‘‘LNP’’) charges, public phone revenues,
interconnection, paging, and installation and connection charges. State PUCs regulate most local service
rates.

Local services revenues increased primarily due to greater sales of wireless and calling services of $142
and $119, respectively. Additionally, access line growth contributed to the rise in revenues. Second line
additions by residential and small business customers contributed to access line growth due to continuing
demand for Internet access and data transport capabilities. As of the end of 1999, we had added 408,000
access lines, an increase of 2.5% over the end of 1998. Of this increase, residential second line installations
accounted for 187,000 lines, an increase of 11.8% compared with 1998. Also contributing to the revenue
growth were greater revenues from inside wire maintenance plans, LNP charges, interconnection revenues,
subscriber line charges and increases in the subscriber base of our MegabitTM data services, collectively
contributing $212. Partially offsetting these increases were net regulatory rate adjustments and refunds of
$16 for 1999, over the comparable 1998 period.

While local services revenues increased in 1999, our growth rate has declined from 1998. The decline
in the growth rate was primarily attributable to increased competition as well as our customer retention
strategy of offering bundles of services to customers at lower prices in return for entering into longer-term
contracts. Additionally, some business customers have opted to migrate from multiple single lines to high
capacity lines, which decreases local services revenues but increases access services revenues. We believe
we may continue to experience declining growth rates as the level of customer demand slows and
competition increases. In June 1999, we entered into a series of definitive agreements to sell local
exchange telephone properties serving approximately 530,000 access lines in nine states for approximately
$1,650 in cash, subject to adjustment. The transfer of ownership, which will occur on a state-by-state basis,
is expected to be completed over the next two years. The access lines accounted for approximately 3% of
fiscal 1999 local services revenues. While the sale is expected to provide us with one-time gains in 2000 and
2001, it will negatively impact future local services revenue growth. Additionally, we are planning the sale
of approximately 270,000 access lines in New Mexico and Washington.

1999 1998 Increase

Access services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,729 $2,660 $69 2.6%
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Access services revenues. Access services revenues are derived primarily from charging IXCs, such as
AT&T and MCI WorldCom, for use of our local network to connect customers to their long-distance
networks. Also included in access services revenues are special access and private line revenues from end-
users buying dedicated local exchange capacity to support their private networks.

The growth in access services revenues was attributable to increased demand for private line and
special access services. Revenues from private line and special access services increased $186 primarily due
to the increased demand for data services. Additionally, increased demand from IXCs contributed to the
revenue increase. Access minutes of use increased 5.0% for 1999. The growth in access minutes of use was
partially offset by mandated rate reductions of $164.

1999 1998 Increase

Directory services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,436 $1,318 $118 9.0%

Directory services revenues. Directory services revenues are primarily derived from selling advertising
in our published directories. Effective in 1999, Dex changed to the ‘‘point of publication’’ method of
accounting, which recognizes revenues and expenses at the time the related directory is published.
Previously, revenues and expenses were recognized under the ‘‘deferral’’ method under which revenues
and expenses were recognized over the lives of the directories, generally one year. We changed the
methodology to align our revenue and expense policy with the earnings process and to better reflect the
operating activity of the business. Directory services revenues for 1998 do not include the effects of the
directory publishing accounting change. Including the effects of the accounting change in 1998, directory
services revenues increased $87, or 6.4%. The increase in directory services revenues was primarily
attributable to increased sales of premium advertisements and price changes.

1999 1998 Decrease

Long-distance services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $584 $795 $(211) (26.5)%

Long-distance services revenues. Long-distance services revenues are derived from customer calls to
locations outside of their local calling area but within the same LATA. The decrease in long-distance
services revenues for 1999 was primarily attributable to greater competition, strategic price reductions and
the expansion in the number and size of extended service areas. Mandated rate reductions of $40 for 1999
also contributed to the revenue decrease. As of December 31, 1999, customers in all 14 states in which we
operate are able to choose an alternative provider for intraLATA calls without dialing a special access code
when placing a call.

We believe we will continue to experience further declines in long-distance services revenues as
regulatory actions provide for increased levels of competition. We are responding to competition through
competitive pricing of intraLATA long-distance services and increased promotional efforts to retain
customers. See ‘‘Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements’’ on page 1.

1999 1998 Increase

Other services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $687 $518 $169 32.6%

Other services revenues. Other services revenues include billing and collection services for IXCs,
collocation services for other CLECs, customer equipment sales and sales of other unregulated products,
such as U S WEST.nets, our Internet service. Other services revenues increased primarily as a result of
increased revenues for U S WEST.nets, the national expansion of our data business and increased
customer equipment sales.
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Expenses

1999 1998 Increase

Employee-related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,733 $4,312 $421 9.8%

Employee-related expenses. Employee-related expenses include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll
taxes and contract labor.

Employee-related expenses for 1998 include $21 of costs related to the third quarter 1998 work
stoppage and do not include the effects of the directory publishing accounting change. Including the effects
of the accounting change and excluding the work stoppage costs, employee-related expenses increased
$439 or 10.2% for 1999 over 1998. The number of employees increased from 54,483 at the end of 1998 to
58,272 at December 31, 1999. Employee-related expenses increased because of increased commitments
towards improving customer service, including meeting requests for installation and repair services,
resulting in higher labor costs. Additionally, growth in several sectors of the business, primarily wireless
and data communications and year 2000 costs, resulted in increased employee levels and contract labor
costs. Across-the-board wage increases also contributed to the increase in employee-related expenses.
Additionally, included in employee-related expenses for 1999 are the salary and benefit costs for employ-
ees who were transferred from Old U S WEST as part of the Separation. Prior to the Separation, these
costs were allocated to us and included in other operating expenses. Partially offsetting these increases was
the capitalization in 1999 of employee-related costs associated with developing internal use software due to
the adoption of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position (‘‘SOP’’)
98-1, ‘‘Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.’’ In
accordance with the SOP, $85 of employee-related costs were capitalized in 1999. An increase in net
pension credits of $47 also partially offset the increase in employee-related expenses for 1999. As a result
of the favorable return on investment earnings on pension plan assets, we will continue to experience
increases in our pension credits in 2000.

1999 1998 Decrease

Other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,745 $2,835 $(90) (3.2)%

Other operating expenses. Other operating expenses include access charges paid to carriers for the
routing of local and long-distance traffic to their facilities, interconnection costs, taxes other than income
taxes, paper, printing, delivery and distribution costs associated with publishing activities and other selling,
general and administrative costs. Included in 1998 were $129 of Separation costs and asset impairment
charges. Additionally, 1998 does not include the effects of the directory publishing accounting change.
Including the effects of the accounting change in 1998 and excluding the Separation costs and asset
impairment charges, other operating expenses increased $33, or 1.2% for 1999 over 1998. This increase
was primarily attributable to the following:

• increased costs of product sales associated with our growth initiatives, including wireless handset
costs and costs applicable to our data communications services and our directory segment,

• higher access and interconnection expenses resulting from regulatory rulings that require us to pay
access charges to carriers for calls that originate on our network and terminate on other carriers’
networks offset by reductions in access expense due to end-users dialing toll calls directly to IXCs
and bypassing our network,

• higher rent expense related to increased computer software, hardware and telephone pole leasing,

• higher property taxes,

• higher bad debt expense related to increased revenues, and
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• higher marketing and advertising costs for wireless, data communications services and calling
services such as caller identification.

Offsetting the increase in other operating expenses was the effect of capitalizing $329 of software costs
in 1999 primarily associated with developing internal use software in accordance with SOP 98-1. A $20
refund related to a gross receipts tax settlement also offset increases to expenses for 1999. Additionally, for
the second half of 1998, the transfer of employees from Old U S WEST as part of the Separation resulted
in the reclassification of related salary and benefit costs to employee-related expenses.

1999 1998 Increase

Depreciation and amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . $2,367 $2,199 $168 7.6%

Depreciation and amortization expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily
due to higher overall property, plant and equipment balances resulting from continued investment in our
network. Additionally, we incurred amortization costs related to the capitalization of internal use software
in accordance with SOP 98-1 and reduced the useful lives of certain assets due to changes in technology,
both of which caused greater depreciation expense. Partially offsetting the increases was the cessation of
depreciation associated with access lines that are intended to be sold.

1999 1998 Increase

Other expense—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,435 $630 $805 127.8%

Other expense—net. Interest expense was $736 for 1999 compared to $543 for 1998. The increase in
interest expense for 1999 was primarily attributable to debt incurred to acquire 39 million shares of Global
Crossing common stock and the $3,900 in debt assumed in the Separation as part of the Dex Alignment.

We incurred a one-time charge in 1999 of $282 to dissolve the proposed merger with Global Crossing.
The charge included a cash payment of $140 to Global Crossing, the transfer of $140 of Global Crossing
common stock, we had previously purchased, to Global Crossing and $2 of miscellaneous merger-related
costs.

We incurred a $367 loss in 1999 on the sale of 24 million shares of Global Crossing common stock. In
connection with this transaction, we entered into an equity return swap which is reflected at market value.
In 1999, the market value of the swap declined by $56.

Also included in other expense—net was other income of $6 in 1999, compared to other expense of
$87 in 1998. The decrease in other expense was due to a reduction in regulatory interest expense, a
reduction in interest expense on a federal income tax audit, gains on sales of real estate, net gains on sales
of marketable securities, reduced contributions to an affiliated foundation and interest earned on a gross
receipts tax settlement.

Segment results. Segment results represent margins which, for segment reporting purposes, exclude
certain costs and expenses, including depreciation and amortization, corporate expenses and taxes other
than income. See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements on pages F-24 through F-26.

Increasee
1999 1998 (Decrease)

Segment results:
Retail services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,111 $ 6,194 $(83) (1.3)%
Wholesale services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,157 1,908 249 13.1
Network services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,793) (2,776) (17) (0.6)
Directory services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 741 657 84 12.8
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Margin from the retail services segment decreased from 1998 due to operating expenses increasing at
a greater rate than revenue growth. Revenues from the retail services segment increased 5.4% for 1999
over 1998, primarily due to growth in local services revenues which include wireless services, calling
services and MegabitTM data services. The revenue increase was more than offset by higher operating
expenses driven by growth initiatives and costs associated with enhancing customer service. Margin from
the wholesale services segment increased as a result of greater demand for access and interconnect
services, partially offset by price reductions as mandated by both federal and state regulatory authorities
and higher access charge expenses. Margin from the network services segment decreased due to increased
volumes, service initiatives and year 2000 costs. Margin from the directory services segment increased due
to changing the manner in which revenues and expenses are recognized and due to growth in directory
services revenue partially offset by increased sales support costs.

1999 1998 Decrease

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $800 $911 $(111) (12.2)%

Provision for income taxes. The effective tax rate for 1999 was 42.1% compared to 37.7% for 1998.
The increase in the effective tax rate in 1999 was primarily attributable to the exclusion of the tax benefit
for terminated merger-related expenses. Excluding the effects of terminated merger-related expenses, the
effective tax rate for 1999 was 36.6% compared to 37.7% for 1998. The decrease from the 1998 effective
tax rate resulted primarily from certain non-deductible Separation costs in 1998 and the increase in tax-
exempt dividend income for 1999.

1998 Compared with 1997

Several non-recurring and non-operating items impacted net income in 1998 and 1997. Results of
operations for the two years, normalized to exclude the effects of such items, are as follows:

Increase
1998 1997 (Decrease)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,508 $1,524 $ (16) (1.0)%
Pro forma adjustment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (72) (162) 90 55.6

Pro forma net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,436 1,362 74 5.4
Non-recurring and non-operating items . . . . . . . . . . . 89 (77) 166 215.6

Normalized pro forma income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,525 $1,285 $ 240 18.7%

Pro forma diluted earnings per share(2) . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.84 $ 2.70 $ 0.14 5.2%
Non-recurring and non-operating items . . . . . . . . . . . 0.17 (0.16) 0.33 206.3

Normalized pro forma diluted earnings per share . . . . $ 3.01 $ 2.55* $ 0.46* 18.0%

* Amount does not foot due to the rounding of individual components.

(1) Reflects incremental (after-tax) interest expense associated with the Dex Indebtedness for the full year 1997 and from the
beginning of 1998 up to the Separation.

(2) Reflects the issuance of approximately 16,341,000 shares of common stock (net of the redemption of approximately 305,000
fractional shares) issued in connection with the Dex Alignment as if the shares had been issued as of the beginning of each
period indicated.

Non-recurring and non-operating items in 1998 include:

• an after-tax charge of $68 or $0.13 per diluted share for Separation costs, and

• an after-tax charge of $21 or $0.04 per diluted share related to the impairment of certain long-lived
assets.



Non-recurring and non-operating items in 1997 include:

• an after-tax charge of $3 or $0.01 per diluted share relating to the early extinguishment of debt, and

• an after-tax gain of $80 or $0.17 per diluted share relating to the sales of local telephone exchanges
and our investment in Bellcore.

The following sections provide a more detailed discussion of the changes in revenues and expenses.

Revenues

1998 1997 Increase

Local services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,104 $6,276 $828 13.2%

Local services revenues. Local service revenues increased in 1998 due largely to access line growth
and increased sales of calling services. Second line additions by residential and small business customers
contributed to access line growth due to continuing demand for Internet access and data transport
capabilities. In 1998, we provided a total of 568,000 additional access lines, an increase of 3.5% over 1997.
Of this increase, second line installations accounted for 241,000 lines, an increase of 18.0% compared with
1997. In addition, regulatory rate increases in various jurisdictions accounted for $53 of the increase in
local service revenues in 1998. Unfavorable regulatory rate adjustments and other provisions for estimated
state regulatory liabilities decreased $122 in 1998 compared to 1997, due in part to a state of Washington
rate order (‘‘Washington Rate Order’’) issued in 1997.

Additionally, revenues from calling services, wireless services and subscriber line charges also contrib-
uted to the increase in revenues. Lastly, the work stoppage in the third quarter of 1998 negatively impacted
revenue growth.

1998 1997 Increase

Access services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,660 $2,645 $15 0.6%

Access services revenues. In 1998, access services revenues were affected by a change in the classifica-
tion of fees paid into the universal service funds. In 1997 and prior years, fees paid into the universal
service funds were netted against access services revenues. In 1998, with the advent of the FCC’s new
universal service fund structure and funding mechanism, these fees were recorded as access expense within
other operating expenses. Excluding the effects of the reclassification, access services revenues decreased
$70 or 2.6% in 1998. The volume of access minutes billed increased 6.3% in 1998. The increase in demand
was substantially offset by price reductions as mandated by the FCC. Additionally, a $68 charge recognized
in 1997 resulting from the Washington Rate Order also contributed to the increase in revenues in 1998.

1998 1997 Increase

Directory services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,318 $1,236 $82 6.6%

Directory services revenues. The increase in directory services revenues was primarily attributable to
increased sales of premium advertisements and price changes.

1998 1997 Decrease

Long-distance services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $795 $897 $(102) (11.4)%

Long-distance services revenues. The decrease in long-distance services revenues was attributable to
greater competition and regulatory rate reductions in 1998, offset by a $51 charge recognized in 1997
resulting from the Washington Rate Order. As of December 31, 1998, in five of the 14 states in which we
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operate, customers were able to choose an alternative provider for intraLATA calls without dialing a
special access code when placing a call. Additionally, contributing to the revenue decline was the expansion
of multiple toll carrier plans in 1997, whereby other telephone companies provide toll services previously
provided by us. Although we no longer receive these revenues, the revenue loss has been offset with
increased access services revenues and lower access expenses.

1998 1997 Increase

Other services revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $518 $467 $51 10.9%

Other services revenues. Other services revenues increased primarily as a result of increased revenues
for customer equipment sales, the national expansion of our data business and U S WEST.nets.

Expenses

1998 1997 Increase

Employee-related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,312 $3,953 $359 9.1%

Employee-related expenses. Employee-related expenses in 1998 included $21 of costs incurred in
connection with the third-quarter work stoppage, including incremental travel costs, contract labor costs
and bonuses paid to management for work performed during the strike. Partially offsetting these addi-
tional costs were lower salaries and wages for occupational employees not working during the strike.
Excluding the work stoppage costs, employee-related expenses increased $338 or 8.6%.

Employee-related expenses increased because of growth in several sectors of the business, primarily
wireless and data communications, resulting in increased employee levels. Across-the-board wage increases
also contributed to the increase in employee-related expenses. The number of employees increased from
51,110 at the end of 1997 to 54,483 at December 31, 1998. We also incurred higher contract labor costs for
systems development, including interconnection and Year 2000 costs and marketing and sales efforts.
Additionally, approximately 530 employees were transferred from Old U S WEST as part of the
Separation. Prior to the Separation, these costs were allocated to us and included in other operating
expenses. Partially offsetting these increases was a $101 pension credit in 1998 compared to a $33 pension
credit in 1997.

At December 31, 1998, 33,000 of our telephone company employees 
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were represented by the
Communications Workers of America. In October 1998, members of the union ratified a three-year
contract providing for salary increases of 10.9% over three years, effective in August of each year, and a
cumulative pension increase of 21% over three years.

1998 1997 Increase

Other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,835 $2,629 $206 7.8%

Other operating expenses. As discussed in ‘‘access service revenues,’’ universal service funding
expenses were netted against revenues in 1997 and prior years and were reclassified as other operating
expenses in 1998. Excluding the effects of the reclassification, other operating expenses increased $121 or
4.6% in 1998. The increase was primarily attributable to the following:

• increased costs associated with growth initiatives, including wireless handset costs and related
marketing and advertising;

• higher interconnection and LNP costs;
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• costs of $94 that were directly attributable to the Separation, including executive severance, legal
and financial advisory fees, securities registration fees, printing and mailing costs and internal
systems and rearrangement costs; and

• an asset impairment charge of $35 related to certain long-lived assets used in our video operations
in Omaha, Nebraska. Technological advances permitted us to pursue and use more economical DSL
(Digital Subscriber Line) technology in cable overbuild situations. Because the projected future
cash flows were less than the assets’ carrying values, an impairment loss was recognized.

Partially offsetting the increase in other operating expenses was the effect of transferring approxi-
mately 530 employees from Old U S WEST as part of the Separation. Costs related to these employees
were reclassified to employee-related expenses. Previously, these costs were allocated from Old U S WEST
and included in other operating expenses.

1998 1997 Increase

Depreciation and amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,199 $2,163 $ 36 1.7%

Depreciation and amortization expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily
due to higher overall property, plant and equipment balances resulting from continued investment in our
network.

1998 1997 Increase

Other expense—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $630 $347 $283 81.6%

Other expense—net. Interest expense was $543 in 1998 compared to $405 in 1997. The increase was
primarily attributable to the Dex Indebtedness. On a pro forma basis, assuming the Dex Indebtedness had
occurred at the beginning of each year presented, interest expense would have been $660 in 1998
compared to $667 in 1997. The decline in pro forma interest expense was attributable to overall lower
average pro forma debt balances in 1998 compared to 1997.

Also included in other expense—net, were other expenses of $87 in 1998 compared to other income of
$58 in 1997. The 1998 other expenses resulted primarily from interest expense on state regulatory liabilities
whereas 1997 other income was derived primarily from sales of local telephone exchanges and our
investment in Bellcore, offset by interest expense on state regulatory liabilities.

Segment results. Segment results represent margins which, for segment reporting purposes, exclude
certain costs and expenses, including depreciation and amortization, corporate expenses, taxes other than
income and other non-recurring charges. See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages F-24 through F-26.

Increase
1998 1997 (decrease)

Segment results:
Retail services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,194 $ 5,940 $ 254 4.3%
Wholesale services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,908 2,176 (268) (12.3)
Network services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,776) (2,738) (38) (1.4)
Directory services segment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 657 615 42 6.8

Margin from the retail services segment increased due to revenue growth, primarily from local
services revenues. The revenue increase was partially offset by higher operating expenses driven by growth
initiatives. Margin from the wholesale services segment decreased as a result of price reductions as
mandated by the FCC and higher operating costs, primarily interconnection costs, partially offset by
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greater demand for interstate access services. Margin from the network services segment decreased as a
result of additional expenditures to support growth in the retail services segment. Margin from the
directory services segment increased due to growth in directory services revenues partially offset by
increased printing, paper and sales support costs.

1998 1997 Increase

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $911 $902 $9 1.0%

Provision for income taxes. On a pro forma basis assuming the Dex Indebtedness had occurred at the
beginning of each year presented, the effective tax rate was 37.7% for 1998 compared to 37.1% for 1997.
The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily attributable to the non-deductibility of certain
Separation costs and lower amortization of investment tax credits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities. Cash provided by operations was $4,546, $3,927 and $4,191 in 1999, 1998 and
1997, respectively. The increase in operating cash flow in 1999 resulted from growth in operating income
and changes in working capital. The decrease in operating cash flow in 1998 resulted from a reduction in
payables, the effects of refunds paid relating to regulatory rulings and an increase in accounts receivable.
Partially offsetting these items were the effects of growth in both the communications and directories
businesses and lower income tax payments.

Future cash needs could increase with the pursuit of new business opportunities, including the
acceleration of the deployment of additional and/or advanced new services to customers, such as broad-
band data, wireless (including the purchase of spectrum licenses) and video services, and may additionally
be impacted by continued implementation of the requirements of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the
‘‘Act’’). The acceleration of such additional and/or advanced new services could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations. Interconnection, LNP, universal service and
access charge reform will negatively impact cash flows to the extent recovery mechanisms provided by the
FCC and state PUCs are inadequate. We would expect that such cash needs will be funded through
operations and, when necessary, the issuance of securities.

Investing Activities. Total capital expenditures, on a cash basis, were $3,944, $2,672 and $2,168 in
1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Capital expenditures have primarily been, and continue to be, focused
on expanding access line growth, modernization of the telecommunications network and meeting the
requirements of the Act, including interconnection services such as LNP, operational support systems,
collocation and trunking. We continue to expand our investment to compete in the wireless, data
communications and video markets. In addition to investments in property, plant and equipment, we paid
$18 in 1998 and $73 in 1997 to purchase wireless PCS licenses in connection with our launch of PCS in
various markets.

In connection with our proposed merger agreement with Global Crossing, we invested $2,464 to
purchase approximately 39 million shares of Global Crossing common stock in a tender offer during 1999.
As a result of our subsequent merger agreement with Qwest, we entered into a termination agreement with
Global Crossing under which we were required to pay Global Crossing $140 and approximately 2.2 million
shares of Global Crossing common stock for which we paid $140. We obtained a $140 loan from Qwest to
satisfy the cash portion of the termination fee. In 1999, we closed on the sale of 24 million shares of Global
Crossing common stock and settled, receiving gross proceeds of $1,140 in January 2000. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1999, the remaining Global Crossing shares we held had a cost basis of $818 and a market value of
$651. This market decline, which we believe to be temporary, has been reflected in accumulated other
comprehensive income in the stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheets.
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We received cash proceeds of $67 in 1997 from the sale of local telephone exchanges. Also during
1997, we sold our equity interest in Bellcore for proceeds of $65.

Financing Activities. Cash provided by financing activities was $1,945 in 1999. Cash used for financing
activities was $1,136 and $2,157 in 1998 and 1997, respectively. The net proceeds from short-term and long-
term debt in 1999 were, in part, utilized to finance the Global Crossing tender offer. In 1998, total debt
increased by $4,204 to $9,919 at December 31, 1998, of which approximately $3,900 was attributable to the
Dex Indebtedness. The Dex Indebtedness was incurred at the Separation date to repay Old U S WEST
debt.

Historically, prior to the Separation, Old U S WEST funded our nonregulatory activities, including
Dex, with short-term advances. The net (repayments of) proceeds from such Old U S WEST short-term
advances were $(198) and $153 during 1998 and 1997, respectively.

We paid dividends on our common shares totaling $1,187, $1,056 and $992 in 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively.

We maintain commercial paper programs to finance short-term cash flow requirements, as well as to
maintain a presence in the short-term debt market. As of December 31, 1999, we had lines of credit with a
total borrowing capacity of $4,050.

Risk Management

Over time, we are exposed to market risks arising from changes in interest rates. The objective of our
interest rate risk management program is to manage the level and volatility of our interest expense. We
may employ derivative financial instruments to manage our interest rate risk exposure. We have also
employed financial derivatives to hedge interest rate and foreign currency exposures associated with
particular debt issues to synthetically obtain below market interest rates.

As of December 31, 1999 and 1998, approximately $2,265 and $951, respectively, of floating-rate debt
was exposed to changes in interest rates. This exposure was primarily linked to commercial paper rates and
changes in 3-month LIBOR. A hypothetical increase of one-percentage point in commercial paper rates
and 3-month LIBOR would increase annual pre-tax interest expenses by $23. As of December 31, 1999 and
1998, we also had $522 and $228, respectively, of long-term fixed rate debt obligations maturing in the
following 12 months. Any new debt obtained to refinance this debt would be exposed to changes in interest
rates. A hypothetical 10% change in the interest rates on this debt would not have had a material effect on
our earnings.

As of December 31, 1999, all outstanding interest rate swaps and the associated debt instruments have
matured. As of December 31, 1998, we had interest rate swaps with notional amounts of $155. The swaps
synthetically transformed certain of the Company’s floating rate issues into fixed rate obligations.

As of December 31, 1999 and 1998, we had also entered into cross-currency swaps with notional
amounts of $133 and $204, respectively. The cross-currency swaps synthetically transform $94 and $182 of
Swiss Franc borrowings at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, into U.S. dollar obligations. Any
gains (losses) on the cross-currency swaps would be offset by losses (gains) on the Swiss Franc debt
obligations.

As of December 31, 1999, we had entered into equity swaps with a notional amount of $1,140 relating
to the sale of 24 million shares of Global Crossing common stock. In connection with the equity swaps, we
entered into several equity collars on certain shares. The equity collars restrict the magnitude of any gains
or losses generated by the equity swaps. A hypothetical 10% reduction in the market price of Global
Crossing common shares would decrease the market value of our net position by $72. A hypothetical
increase of one-percentage point in interest rates would decrease the market value of our net position by
$16.

Other assets at December 31, 1999 included marketable equity securities recorded at a fair value of
$1,206 including net unrealized gains of $222. The securities have exposure to price risk. The estimated
potential loss in fair value resulting from a hypothetical 10% decrease in prices quoted by stock exchanges
would decrease the fair value of our equity securities by $121.



Contingencies

We have certain pending regulatory actions. See Note 1
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5 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages F-27 through F-28.

Other Items

From time to time, we engage in discussions regarding restructurings, dispositions, acquisitions and
other similar transactions. Any such transaction could include, among other things, the transfer, sale or
acquisition of significant assets, businesses or interests, including joint ventures, or the incurrence,
assumption or refinancing of indebtedness, and could be material to our financial condition and results of
operations. There is no assurance that any such discussions will result in the consummation of any such
transaction.

Competition

When Congress passed the Act, its primary purpose was to open the local markets of the telecommu-
nications industry to competition. Now, four years later, the Act’s impact on the industry and on us can be
seen. We face increasing competition from a variety of sources, including other local service providers,
long-distance service providers, cable TV companies, wireless service providers, Internet service providers
and other entrants from closely-related industries. As a result of these competitors’ efforts, we are
experiencing an erosion of our market share as well as pressure on our profit margins which could have a
material adverse effect on our operations going forward.

To date, the most significant competition has developed in the business market where competitors
have targeted high-volume business customers in densely populated urban centers and selected businesses
in smaller communities. In the residential market, competitors are focusing on areas of highly concen-
trated customers, such as multiple dwelling units. We are facing competition in virtually all areas of our
business: local calling, intraLATA long-distance, wireless, Internet and data services. Our directory
business is facing competition from services provided by web-based electronic providers and traditional
directory publishers. We are also encountering competition from at least two cellular providers as well as
other PCS companies in each market where we offer wireless service.

As part of the Act, we must provide interconnection to our network for competitors and furnish
number portability to our customers. Both of these areas have, and will continue to increase our cost
structure while providing others with the means to effectively compete with us. We must meet all parts of a
14-point checklist and then receive FCC approval before we are allowed to enter the in-Region interLATA
long-distance market. The Act, as well as other state regulatory proceedings, have also significantly
impacted pricing and the speed with which we may bring new products and services to market. For a
further discussion of regulatory matters, you should read the section entitled ‘‘Regulation’’ below.

Technological advancements will help to shape the competitive landscape of the future. Examples
include the wireless replacement of wireline capabilities, migration from circuit-switched to packet-
switched technology such as IP telephony, the capabilities associated with DSL services versus hybrid fiber/
coax abilities and the analog conversions to digital. Also, the telecommunication-related mega-mergers
announced and consummated in recent years will give competitors greater access to our markets and
provide increased financial resources that can be used to fund projects that will compete directly with us.

We are countering the competition by expanding and improving our product and service offerings. In
addition to enhancing and possibly accelerating current service offerings, including PCS, high-speed data,
Internet access, interconnection services and video transmission, we will be investigating other services.
Our proposed merger with Qwest will also provide additional resources to compete in an expanded
geographic marketplace. We are also working to ease the regulatory barriers we face for entry into the
interLATA long-distance market as well as addressing our needs to have increased pricing flexibility for
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our products and services. Finally, we believe that our ability to bundle and integrate a comprehensive
telecommunications package that can be made available through one-stop shopping will provide a
significant competitive advantage. For factors which could cause actual results to differ from expectations,
refer to ‘‘Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements’’ on page 1.

Regulation

Interconnection. The FCC issued an order (the ‘‘Order’’) in 1996 relating to the Act that established
interconnection costing and pricing rules which, from our perspective, significantly impeded negotiations
with new entrants to the local exchange market, state PUC interconnection rulemakings and interconnec-
tion arbitration proceedings.

On January 25, 1999, the U.S. Supreme Court (‘‘Supreme Court’’) issued a ruling on our appeal of the
Order. The Supreme Court affirmed in part and reversed in part the FCC Order and ruled that:

• the FCC has authority to set pricing methodology;

• unbundled network elements (‘‘UNEs’’) must be provided in cases where it is necessary or the lack
of availability would impair competition, but not otherwise;

• Incumbent local exchange carriers (‘‘ILECs’’) must sell on a bundled basis, at the competitive local
exchange carriers’ (‘‘CLECs’’) request, network elements the ILEC uses itself on a bundled basis;
and

• CLECs may pick and choose pricing or other terms and conditions from multiple contracts within
certain bounds.

The ultimate impact of the Supreme Court ruling remains unclear since state PUCs have generally
followed the FCC’s pricing and unbundling requirements in setting UNE prices and in conducting
interconnection arbitrations. Over time, market forces and CLEC demand for UNEs will provide addi-
tional clarity.

On November 5, 1999, the FCC released its order responding to the Supreme Court’s directive that it
can order UNEs only where the failure to do so would impair competition. The order largely reaffirms, and
in some instances expands, the earlier decision made by the Supreme Court. It is anticipated that there will
be an ILEC appeal of this order. See ‘‘Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements’’ on page 1.

As part of the November 5th order, the FCC issued a further notice of proposed rulemaking. In this
further notice, the FCC is considering whether to allow all interexchange carriers to substitute UNEs for
existing special access circuits. Since UNEs are priced at substantial discounts using pricing which is much
lower than current tariffed rates, this creates a potential arbitrage situation that could substantially reduce
existing private line and special access revenues.

On interconnection pricing, we and other ILECs have challenged the FCC’s pricing methodology at
the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals. This case was argued in September 1999 and is awaiting decision.

Access Reform. In its access reform order, the FCC mandated a substantial restructuring of interstate
access pricing. A significant portion of the services that have been sold using minutes-of-use pricing are
now being charged using a combination of minutes-of-use rates, flat-rate presubscribed interexchange
carrier charges (‘‘PICCs’’) and subscriber line charges (‘‘SLCs’’). Although an increase in the SLC to multi-
line business users occurred on July 1, 1997, the bulk of the mandated pricing changes occurred on
January 1, 1998. Additional mandated pricing changes occurred on January 1, 1999 and July 1, 1999 and
further changes will be implemented in 2000 and 2001. The net effect of these changes will be to decrease
minutes-of-use charges and increase flat-rate charges (i.e., PICCs and SLCs). These changes generally
improve the pricing structure for our competitive services.
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The access reform order also continued the exemption regarding the application of interstate access
charges on information service providers and purchasers of UNEs. This remains a problem as the volume
of information service-related usage continues to increase without an associated increase in revenues.

In February 1999, the FCC issued an order declaring that Internet traffic is interstate and opened a
proceeding to determine the appropriate regulatory structure. The FCC required no change in the current
agreements for reciprocal compensation for local access expense with CLECs until it rules on this matter.
This order has been appealed by the ILECs and MCI. Until this is resolved there will remain uncertainty
regarding the Company’s payment obligation for Internet traffic.

Pending before the FCC are several proposals for access reform including the reduction of interstate
rates to reflect the removal of universal service support, changing the rate structure for switched access to a
flat rated structure, an industry proposal for changing the general access structure including the removal of
the productivity factor and elimination of the PICC for single line customers, and a court remanded review
of the productivity factor. Action on these items is expected by mid-2000. Adoption of access reform
proposals pending at the FCC could result in significant reductions in the Company’s interstate revenues.
There is no assurance such reductions would be offset by increases in other rates.

Court Remand of 6.5% Productivity Factor. On May 21, 1999, the District of Columbia U.S. Court of
Appeals issued a ruling reversing and remanding back to the FCC its order requiring ILECs to retroac-
tively increase the productivity offset to price caps to 6.5% in their annual price cap filings. The Court
found that the FCC’s order did not justify the increase. In December 1999, the FCC issued a notice of
proposed rulemaking responding to the issues raised in the Court’s remand. The FCC proposed three
alternative approaches to determining a new productivity factor and asked whether it should be applied
retroactively. The FCC must issue its order by April 2000. This issue is also being addressed in conjunction
with the access reform proposals. If the FCC does not resolve this issue in conjunction with access reform,
it may adopt a new higher productivity factor or modified formula which could materially reduce the
Company’s interstate access charges.

Access Pricing Flexibility. The FCC issued an order granting some pricing flexibility on August 27,
1999. The FCC removed many vestiges of regulation including price caps for intraLATA interstate toll
because long distance parity has been achieved for all 14 states. Various levels of pricing flexibility, up to
and including the removal of Price Cap regulation, are possible when competitive triggers are reached
within geographic areas for special access and switched access transport. Some pricing flexibility is granted
for switched access and SLCs when certain levels of competition are demonstrated by geographic area.
Although this order provides some relief, it is unlikely to have substantial impact until the FCC removes
the uncertainty around access reform and network unbundling.

Advanced Telecommunications Services. On March 31, 1999, the FCC issued an order establishing
expanded collocation requirements for both conventional voice and advanced services. On December 9,
1999, the FCC further required that line sharing be provided as an UNE. Line sharing allows a CLEC to
provide advanced services over the same loop that the ILEC uses to provide analog voice service.
Previously, CLECs purchased a separate loop to provision advanced services. The ILECs have six months
to negotiate agreements with CLECs and resolve operational issues. It is anticipated that line sharing will
be available by mid-2000 and will reduce revenues from the sale of unbundled loops and may reduce
demand for second lines. In its November 1999 interconnection remand decision, the FCC limited the
scope of its unbundling decision and generally excluded facilities used for advanced services other than
local loops and collocation space.

InterLATA Long-Distance Entry. Several regional Bell operating companies have filed for entry into
the interLATA long-distance business. Although many of these applications have been approved by state
PUCs, the FCC had rejected all applications until its December 1999 approval of Bell Atlantic Corpora-
tion’s application in New York. AT&T and other carriers have appealed that decision.
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We filed applications to enter the interLATA long-distance business in Arizona, Colorado and
Nebraska in 1999 and continue to work with the PUCs in those states to gain approval. In April 1999, the
Nebraska Public Service Commission approved eight of the fourteen checklist items but indicated it
needed additional information before making a recommendation to the FCC. We are addressing opera-
tional support system issues on a regional basis and have agreed to participate in regional testing. In
February 2000, we filed notices of our intention to file entry applications with our remaining state PUCs
for their review and expect to file actual applications in all states by the end of 2000, with FCC filings
following favorable state action. See ‘‘Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements ’’ on page 1.

Long-Term Number Portability Tariffs. In July 1999, the FCC issued an order on our LNP tariff that
was originally effective in February 1999. The FCC’s order approved a monthly cost recovery surcharge of
$0.43 per access line. We estimate the surcharge will facilitate the recovery of approximately $407 of LNP
implementation costs over five years. The Company successfully defended its tariffs against AT&T’s
objections.

Universal Service Fees. On October 8, 1999, the FCC issued orders in response to the Fifth Circuit
Court of Appeals’ mandate on universal service. These orders were effective on November 1, 1999. The
FCC will allow the fees the ILECs pay to support universal service to be recovered in access charges
indefinitely. ILECs that wish to do so may remove the fees from access and establish a separate end user
charge. The FCC also changed the rules to remove certain revenues from the base for calculating the fees.
A tariff filing, effective November 1, 1999, reduced the access rates which recover these fees.

On October 21, 1999, the FCC adopted two companion orders implementing a new universal service
fund for non-rural ILECs. The orders adopted a forward-looking cost model and determined that an
ILEC’s costs at a study area (usually statewide) level must be greater than 135% of the nationwide average
to collect from the federal fund. Under this new methodology, we will receive federal high cost funding
(both rural and non-rural) for only four states versus funding for seven states in 1999. As a part of these
orders, the FCC included a ‘‘hold harmless’’ provision. This provision allows ILECs whose collections
would otherwise decrease, to continue collecting support using current methods for an indefinite period of
time. The FCC will determine the phase-out period for these collections in 2000. We collected $15 in total
high cost support (rural and non-rural) in 1999, which will eventually be reduced to approximately $13
under the FCC’s new methodology. Because of regulatory uncertainty regarding, among other things, the
duration of the ‘‘hold harmless’’ provision, we are currently unable to accurately estimate our federal high
cost support for 2000. In 2000, we will receive federal high cost support for six states under the hold
harmless provisions. The FCC has stated that non-rural carriers should look to the states to make up some
or all of the shortfall in universal service support. We are in the process of seeking additional support from
the states, but the likelihood of success and the amount of state support are as yet uncertain.

Year 2000 Costs

Background. We conducted a comprehensive review of our computer-based systems and related
software and took measures to ensure that such systems would properly recognize the year 2000 and
continue to process beyond December 31, 1999. The systems we evaluated include systems within (i) the
Public Switched Telephone Network (the ‘‘Network’’), (ii) Information Technologies (‘‘IT’’), and
(iii) individual Business Units (the ‘‘Business Units’’).

The Network, which processes voice and data information relating to our core communications
business, relies on remote switches, central office equipment, interoffice equipment and loop transport
equipment that is predominantly provided to us by telecommunications network vendors. IT is comprised
of our internal business systems that employ hardware and software on an enterprise-wide basis, including
operational, financial and administrative functions. The Business Units, which include internal organiza-
tions such as finance, procurement, directory services, operator services, wireless, data networks, real
estate, etc., employ systems that support desktop and departmental applications, as well as embedded
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computer chip technologies, which relate specifically to each of our Business Unit’s functions and generally
are not part of the Network or IT.

Costs relating to year 2000. We spent approximately $271 from the beginning of 1997 through the end
of 1999 on year 2000 projects and activities. Virtually all year 2000 related expenditures were funded
through operations.

Summary. As of January 26, 2000, our Network, IT and Business Unit systems have not experienced
any critical failures. To date, we have not experienced any disruption in our operations or impairment in
our ability to bill or collect revenues relating to the year 2000. We do not expect to incur any additional
year 2000 costs in 2000.

New Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (‘‘FAS’’) No. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.’’ This
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging
activities. FAS No. 133 requires, among other things, that all derivative instruments be recognized at fair
value as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and that changes in fair value generally be recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. The standard is effective for our
2001 fiscal year though earlier adoption is permitted. Financial statement impacts of adopting the new
standard depend upon the amount and nature of the future use of derivative instruments and their relative
changes in valuation over time. Had we adopted FAS No. 133 in 1999, its impact on the current year
consolidated financial statements would not have been material.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (‘‘SEC’’) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 (the ‘‘Bulletin’’) ‘‘Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,’’ which addresses
revenue recognition issues. The Bulletin requires, in certain cases, nonrefundable up-front fees for services
to be deferred and recognized over the expected period of performance. The Bulletin also requires that
incremental direct costs incurred in obtaining the up-front fees be deferred and recognized over the same
period as the up-front fees. The Bulletin is required to be adopted for the quarter ending March 31, 2000.
We are assessing the types of transactions that may be impacted by this pronouncement. The impact of the
Bulletin on the consolidated financial statements is not yet known.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To U S WEST, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U S WEST, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements
of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decem-
ber 31, 1999. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards

F-1

 generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of U S WEST, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 and the results of
their operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 1999, the
Company changed its method of accounting for directory publishing revenues and expenses.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Denver, Colorado,
January 26, 2000.
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U S WEST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

(dollars in millions, except per
share amounts)

Revenues:
Local services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,746 $ 7,104 $ 6,276
Access services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,729 2,660 2,645
Directory services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,436 1,318 1,236
Long-distance services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 584 795 897
Other services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 687 518 467

Total operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,182 12,395 11,521

Operating expenses:
Employee-related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,733 4,312 3,953
Other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,745 2,835 2,629
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,367 2,199 2,163

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,845 9,346 8,745

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,337 3,049 2,776

Other expense (income):
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 736 543 405
Terminated merger—related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 — —
Loss on sale of Global Crossing common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 367 — —
Decline in market value of derivative financial instruments . . . . . . . . . 56 — —
Other (income) expense—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) 87 (58)

Total other expense—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,435 630 347

Income before income taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,902 2,419 2,429

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 800 911 902

Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,102 1,508 1,527

Extraordinary item—early extinguishment of debt—net of tax . . . . . . . . . — — (3)

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . . . 1,102 1,508 1,524
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle—net of tax . . . . . . . 240 — —

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,342 $ 1,508 $ 1,524

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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U S WEST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

(dollars in millions, except per
share amounts)

Basic earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.18 $ 3.05 $ 3.16
Extraordinary item—early extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.48 — —

Basic earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.66 $ 3.05 $ 3.16#

Basic average shares outstanding (in 000’s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 504,423 494,395 482,751

Diluted earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.16 $ 3.02 $ 3.13
Extraordinary item—early extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.47 — —

Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.63 $ 3.02 $ 3.12

Diluted average shares outstanding (in 000’s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 509,306 498,798 491,232

Dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.36 $ 2.14 $ 2.14

Pro forma basic earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.18 $ 3.05 $ 3.16
Pro forma adjustment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.02 0.03
Extraordinary item—early extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.01)

Basic earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.18 $ 3.07 $ 3.18

Pro forma diluted earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.16 $ 3.02 $ 3.13
Pro forma adjustment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.02 0.03
Extraordinary item—early extinguishment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.01)

Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.16 $ 3.04 $ 3.15

(1) Reflects the after-tax effect of the change in accounting method for directory revenues and expenses.

# Does not foot due to rounding of individual components.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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U S WEST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

1999 1998

(dollars in millions,
except per share

amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 78 $ 49
Accounts receivable less allowance for uncollectibles

of $88 and $69, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,455 1,743
Receivable from sale of Global Crossing Ltd. common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,140 —
Inventories and supplies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 272 197
Deferred directory costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85 274
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 151
Prepaid and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 78

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,192 2,492

Property, plant and equipment—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,404 14,908
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,234 63
Other assets—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,386 944

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $23,216 $18,407

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,882 $ 1,277
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,700 1,347
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,840 1,702
Advance billings and customer deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 344 370

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,766 4,696

Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,189 8,642
Postretirement and other postemployment benefit obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,890 2,643
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,191 786
Unamortized investment tax credits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 161 159
Deferred credits and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 764 726

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock—$1.00 par value, 190,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and

outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Series A junior preferred stock—$1.00 par value 10,000,000 shares authorized,

none issued and outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Common stock—$0.01 par value, 2,000,000,000 shares authorized, 506,554,982

and 503,207,058 issued, 506,250,979 and 502,903,055 outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . 656 532
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 377 223
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222 —

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,255 755

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $23,216 $18,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



U S WEST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

(dollars in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,342 $ 1,508 $ 1,524

Adjustments to net income:
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,367 2,199 2,163
Loss on sale of Global Crossing common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 367 — —
Loss on change in market value of derivatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 — —
Gains on sales of local telephone exchanges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (77)
Gain on sale of investment in Bellcore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (53)
Asset impairment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 35 —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . (240) — —
Deferred income taxes and amortization of investment tax credits . . . 225 106 (15)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (126) (26) (60)
Inventories, supplies and other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (106) (12) (63)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and advance billings . . . . . . . . . 345 (13) 487
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 316 130 285

Cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,546 3,927 4,191

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,944) (2,672) (2,168)
Proceeds from (payments on) disposals of property, plant and

equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (49) (30) 22
Investment in Global Crossing Ltd. common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,464) — —
Proceeds from sales of local telephone exchanges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 67
Proceeds from sale of investment in Bellcore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 65
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5) (67) (73)
Cash used for investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,462) (2,769) (2,087)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from (repayments of) short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,304 887 (640)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,062 3,781 29
Repayments of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (336) (442) (446)
Dividends paid on common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,187) (1,056) (992)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102 88 75
Repayment of Old U S WEST debt in connection with the Dex

Alignment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (3,829) —
Net (repayments of) proceeds from issuance of Old U S WEST

short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (198) 153
Dividends paid to Old U S WEST . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (194) (336)
Payment to Old U S WEST for debt refinancing costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (140) —
Return of capital from Old U S WEST . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 13 —
Purchases of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (46) —
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,945 (1,136) (2,157)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Increase (decrease) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 22 (53)
Beginning balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 27 80
Ending balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 78 $ 49 $ 27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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U S WEST, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

U S W
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Retained
EST Pre- Earnings/Other

Common separation Common Comprehensive
stock Equity Stock Income Total

(shares in
thousands)

Balance, January 1, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 480,457 $ 4,085 $ — $ — $ 4,085
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,524 — — 1,524
Dividends declared on common stock . . . . . — (1,034) — — (1,034)
Dividends declared to Old U S WEST . . . . — (347) — — (347)
Common stock issuances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,058 138 — — 138
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1 — — 1

Balance, December 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 484,515 4,367 — — 4,367
Net income from January 1 to June 12,

1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 747 — — 747
Dividends declared on common stock . . . . . — (528) — — (528)
Dividends declared to Old U S WEST . . . . — (159) — — (159)
Common stock issuances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,100 55 — — 55
Return of capital from Old U S WEST . . . — 13 — — 13
Treasury stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (574) (32) — — (32)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 — — 2

June 12, 1998 Separation:
Contributed capital from Old U S WEST

upon Separation, excluding assumption of
debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (4,465) 4,465 — —

Repayment of Dex Indebtedness to
MediaOne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (3,829) — (3,829)

Issuance of common stock to MediaOne
stockholders net of repurchases . . . . . . . 16,646 — 850 — 850

Distribution to MediaOne stockholders for
Dex Dividend . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (850) — (850)

Dividend to MediaOne for share of Old
U S WEST’s debt refinancing costs . . . . . — — (140) — (140)

Common stock issuances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,521 — 58 — 58
Treasury stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (305) — (15) — (15)
Net income from June 13 to December 31,

1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 761 761
Dividends declared on common stock . . . . . — — — (538) (538)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (7) — (7)

Balance, December 31, 1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 502,903 — 532 223 755
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 1,342 1,342
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains on securities . . . . . . . . . — — — 222 222
Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 1,564 1,564
Dividends declared on common stock . . . . . — — — (1,187) (1,187)
Common stock issuances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,348 — 124 — 124
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (1) (1)

Balance, December 31, 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 506,251 $ — $ 656 $ 599 $ 1,255

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



U S WEST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1: U S WEST SEPARATION

On June 12, 1998, our former parent company (‘‘Old U S WEST’’), separated into two independent
companies (the ‘‘Separation’’). Old U S WEST conducted its businesses through two groups: (i) the
U S WEST Communications Group (the ‘‘Communications Group’’), which included the communications
businesses of Old U S WEST, and (ii) the U S WEST Media Group (the ‘‘Media Group’’), which included
the multimedia and directories businesses of Old U S WEST. As part of the Separation, Old U S WEST
contributed to us the businesses of the Communications Group and the domestic directories business of
the Media Group known as U S WEST Dex, Inc. (‘‘Dex’’). The alignment of Dex with U S WEST, Inc. (the
‘‘Company’’ or ‘‘U S WEST’’) is referred to in this document as the ‘‘Dex Alignment.’’ Old U S WEST
continues to operate as an independent public company comprised of the businesses of the Media Group
other than Dex and has been renamed MediaOne Group, Inc.

In connection with the Dex Alignment, (i) Old U S WEST distributed to holders of Media Group
common stock, approximately 16,341,000 shares of our common stock (net of the redemption of approxi-
mately 305,000 fractional shares) with an aggregate value of $850 (the ‘‘Dex Dividend’’)
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; and (ii) we
refinanced $3,900 of Old U S WEST debt (the ‘‘Dex Indebtedness’’), formerly allocated to Media Group.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated historical
results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the businesses that comprise the Communications
Group and Dex, as if such businesses operated as a separate entity for all periods and as of all dates
presented. However, certain financial effects of the Separation and the Dex Alignment, including interest
expense associated with refinancing the Dex Indebtedness and the dilutive effect of the Dex Dividend, are
not reflected in the accompanying historical consolidated statements of income prior to the Separation.

For periods prior to the Separation, the consolidated financial statements include an allocation of
certain costs, expenses, assets and liabilities from Old U S WEST to us. We believe the allocations were
reasonable; however the amount of costs allocated to us were not necessarily indicative of the costs that
would have been incurred if we had operated as a stand-alone company. The consolidated financial
statements may not necessarily reflect the financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the
future or what they would have been had we been a separate, stand-alone company during such periods.

We are incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of U S WEST and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
amounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts within the consolidated financial statements have been
made to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
and disclosures reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Method. Prior to 1999, Dex recognized revenues and expenses related to
publishing directories using the ‘‘deferral method,’’ under which revenues and expenses were recognized



U S WEST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
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NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

over the lives of the directories, generally one year. Effective the fourth quarter of 1999, Dex changed to
the ‘‘point of publication’’ method of accounting, which recognizes revenues and expenses at the time the
related directory is published. The change in methodology was made to align our revenue and expense
policy with the earnings process and to better reflect the operating activity of the business. The accounting
change resulted in a one-time increase in net income of $240 (net of income tax of $153), or $0.47 per
diluted share, which is reported as a cumulative effect (as of January 1, 1999) of a change in accounting
principle. We restated our 1999 quarterly results of operations to give effect to the point of publication
method (see Note 16) which increased net income by $13 or $0.03 per diluted share as compared to results
that would have been reported under the deferral method. On a restated basis, use of the point of
publication method would have increased net income in 1998 and 1997, by $12 and $16, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible into cash and are not subject to significant
risk from fluctuations in interest rates.

Inventories and Supplies. New and reusable materials of our regulated business are carried at average
cost, except for significant individual items that are valued based on specific costs. Non-reusable material is
carried at its estimated salvage value. Inventories of our nonregulated businesses are carried at the lower
of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost. The majority of
property, plant and equipment is depreciated using straight-line group methods. Under the group method,
when an asset is sold or retired, the cost is deducted from property, plant and equipment and charged to
accumulated depreciation without recognition of a gain or loss. Certain unregulated assets are depreciated
using straight-line unit methods. When such depreciable property is retired or sold, the resulting gain or
loss is included in income. The depreciable lives used for the major categories of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Category Life (years)

Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19-40
Telecommunications network equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8-14
Telecommunications outside plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8-57
General purpose computers and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2-17

Interest related to qualifying construction projects is capitalized and reflected as a reduction of
interest expense. Amounts capitalized were $27, $25 and $20 in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. We assess the impairment of long-lived assets such as property, plant
and equipment, goodwill and software when changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value
may not be recoverable. If the total expected future cash flows or salvage value is less than the carrying
value of the asset, a loss is recognized.

Computer Software. On January 1, 1999, we adopted the accounting provisions required by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position (‘‘SOP’’) 98-1, ‘‘Accounting for
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NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.’’ SOP 98-1, among other things,
requires that certain costs of internal use software, whether purchased or developed internally, be
capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful life of the software. Adoption of the SOP resulted in
an increase in net income for 1999 of $180, or $0.35 per diluted share.

Capitalized computer software costs of $618 and $196 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively,
are recorded in property, plant and equipment and other assets—net. Amortization of capitalized
computer software costs totaled $108, $84 and $78 in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Marketable Securities. All marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale securities under
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (‘‘FAS’’) No. 115, ‘‘Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.’’ Unrealized holding gains and losses are determined on the
specific identification method and presented as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
within stockholders’ equity.

Financial Instruments. The objective of our interest rate risk management program is to obtain the
minimum total cost of debt over time consistent with an acceptable level of interest rate volatility. This
objective is achieved through the type of debt issued, interest rate swaps that adjust the ratio of fixed- to
variable-rate debt, cross-currency swaps that convert foreign-denominated debt to dollar-denominated
debt and forward contracts to hedge future debt issues.

Under an interest rate swap, we agree with another party to exchange interest payments, based on a
notional amount, at specified intervals over a defined term. Interest rate swaps are accounted for under the
synthetic instruments accounting model if the index, maturity and amount of the instrument match the
terms of the underlying debt. Net interest accrued is recognized over the life of the instruments as an
adjustment to interest expense and is a component of cash provided by operating activities. Any gain or
loss on the termination of an instrument that qualifies for synthetic instrument accounting would be
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the original instrument.

Under a cross-currency swap, we agree with another party to exchange U. S. dollars for foreign
currency based on a notional amount, at specified intervals over a defined term. Cross-currency swaps are
accounted for under the synthetic instruments accounting model if the index, maturity and amount of the
instruments match the terms of the underlying debt. The cross-currency swaps and the foreign currency
debt are combined and accounted for as if dollar-denominated debt was issued directly.

Under a forward contract, we agree with another party to sell a specified amount of U. S. Treasuries to
hedge the treasury-rate component of future debt issues. The gain or loss on the forward contract is
recorded as part of the carrying value of the related debt and is amortized as a yield adjustment.

Equity swaps are used to tailor our risk exposure to changes in the market price of Global Crossing
Ltd. (‘‘Global Crossing’’) common stock. Under equity swaps, we agree with another party to exchange
payments based on a notional amount, at specific intervals over a defined term. In exchange, for making
payments based upon an interest rate index we receive (render) payments based upon increases
(decreases) in the market price of Global Crossing common stock. Collar agreements have been secured
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NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

which limit the magnitude of the payments we receive (render) if the market price of Global Crossing
common stock increases (decreases).

Revenue Recognition. Local telephone, wireless and Internet services are generally billed in advance
with revenues recognized when services are provided. Revenues derived from exchange access, long-
distance services and wireless airtime usage are recognized as services are provided.

Advertising Costs. Costs related to advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was
$308, $263 and $214 in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes consists of an amount for taxes currently payable and
an amount for tax consequences deferred to future periods. For financial statement purposes, investment
tax credits are amortized over the lives of the related property, plant and equipment.

Stock Options. Stock incentive plans are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,’’ under which no compensation
expense is recognized for options granted to employees at fair market value, except when the plan is
determined to be variable in nature.

New Accounting Standards. On June 15, 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FAS
No. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.’’ This statement establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. FAS No. 133
requires, among other things, that all derivative instruments be recognized at fair value as assets or
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and changes in fair value are generally recognized currently in
earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. This standard is effective for our 2001 fiscal
year, although earlier adoption is permitted. Financial statement impacts of adopting the new standard
depend upon the amount and nature of the future use of derivative instruments and their relative changes
in valuation over time. Had we adopted FAS No. 133 in 1999, its impact on the financial statements would
not have been material.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (‘‘SEC’’) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 (the ‘‘Bulletin’’), ‘‘Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,’’ which addresses
revenue recognition issues. The Bulletin requires, in certain cases, nonrefundable up-front fees for services
to be deferred and recognized over the expected period of performance. The Bulletin also requires that
incremental direct costs incurred in obtaining the up-front fees be deferred and recognized over the same
period as the up-front fees. The Bulletin is required to be adopted for the quarter ending March 31, 2000.
We are assessing the types of transactions that may be impacted by this pronouncement. The impact of the
Bulletin on the consolidated financial statements is not yet known.
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NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The components of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

December 31,

1999 1998

Land and buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,535 $ 2,491
Telecommunications network equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,828 14,750
Telecommunications outside plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,021 14,342
General purpose computers and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,396 3,374
Construction in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,346 681

$38,126 $35,638

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 771 $ 748
Telecommunications network equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,059 8,950
Telecommunications outside plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,642 9,151
General purpose computers and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,250 1,881

21,722 20,730

Property, plant and equipment—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $16,404 $14,908

Asset Impairment. During 1998, we recorded a non-cash charge of $21 (net of a $14 income tax
benefit) related to the impairment of certain long-lived assets associated with our video operations in
Omaha, Nebraska. The impaired assets primarily consisted of underground cable and hardware. Techno-
logical advances permitted us to pursue and use more economical digital subscriber line (‘‘DSL’’)
technology in cable overbuild situations. Because the projected future cash flows were less than the assets’
carrying values, an impairment loss was recognized in accordance with FAS No. 121, ‘‘Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.’’ The amount of
impairment was determined based on the net present value of the expected future cash flows of the video
operations, discounted at our cost of capital. The pretax charge is recorded in ‘‘other operating expenses’’
within the consolidated statements of income.

Leasing Arrangements. Certain office facilities, real estate and equipment are used in operations
under operating leases. Rent expense under operating leases for 1999, 1998 and 1997 was $269, $210 and
$235, respectively. At December 31, 1999, the future minimum rental payments under noncancelable
operating leases for the years 2000 through 2004 and thereafter are $190, $191, $147, $132, $146 and $663,
respectively.

Sale of Exchanges. In June 1999, we entered into a series of definitive agreements to sell local-
exchange telephone properties serving approximately 530,000 access lines in nine states for approximately
$1,650 in cash, subject to adjustment. Approval of the sale is subject to review by federal and state
regulatory agencies. The transfer of ownership, which will occur on a state-by-state basis, is expected to be
completed over the next two years. We are planning the sale of approximately 270,000 additional access
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NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

lines in New Mexico and Washington. In accordance with FAS No. 121, we ceased depreciation on the
access lines in 1999.

NOTE 4: ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,

1999 1998

Employee compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 439 $ 434
Dividends payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 271 269
Accrued property taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 218 190
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 912 809

Total accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,840 $1,702

NOTE 5: DEBT

Short-term Debt

The components of short-term debt were as follows:

December 31,

1999 1998

Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,265 $ 951
Current portion of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,617 326

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,882 $1,277

The weighted-average interest rate on commercial paper was 6.53% and 5.70% at December 31, 1999
and 1998, respectively.

We maintain commercial paper programs to finance short-term cash flow requirements, as well as to
maintain a presence in the short-term debt market. We enter into lines of credit as backup facilities in
issuing commercial paper. At December 31, 1999, we have lines of credit totaling $3,050, which expire in
2000. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the lines range from 0.06% to 0.25%. As of Decem-
ber 31, 1999, there was no outstanding balance. To the extent we continue our commercial paper programs,
we plan to renew our lines of credit.
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NOTE 5: DEBT (Continued)

Long-term Debt

Interest rates and maturities of long-term debt at December 31 were as follows:

Maturities

Total Total
Interest rates 2001 2002 2003 2004 Thereafter 1999 1998

Up to 5% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $100 $ 50 $ — $ — $ 150 $ 240
Above 5% to 6% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 — — 99 430 579 578
Above 6% to 7% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,427 749 43 — 4,392 6,611 5,575
Above 7% to 8% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 62 749 1,556 2,367 1,618
Above 8% to 9% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 243 243 243
Above 9% to 10% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — 175

$1,477 $849 $155 $848 $6,621 9,950 8,429

Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115 122
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124 91

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,189 $8,642

Long-term debt consists principally of debentures and medium-term notes.

In June 1998, U S WEST Capital Funding, Inc., a wholly-owned financing subsidiary, issued approxi-
mately $4,100 in new debt securities, of which approximately $1,000 was short-term commercial paper.
Approximately $3,830 in proceeds from the issuance of these securities were used to repay Old U S WEST
debt in connection with the Dex Alignment. The remaining proceeds were primarily used to fund our share
of operating expenses and debt refinancing costs incurred by Old U S WEST that were directly attributable
to the Separation. In addition, we refinanced approximately $200, including $70 of Dex debt, assumed in
the Dex Alignment.

Interest paid by us, net of amounts capitalized, was $595, $640, and $394 in 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively.

At December 31, 1999, we have a $1,000 line of credit which expires in 2003. The line has a
commitment fee on the unused portion of the line of 0.15%. As of December 31, 1999, there was no
outstanding balance.

Financial Contracts

The following table summarizes the terms of outstanding interest rate, cross-currency and equity
swaps at December 31, 1999 and 1998. Variable rates are indexed to two- and ten-year constant maturity
U. S. Treasuries. Cross-currency swaps are tied to the Swiss Franc. Rates received in the equity swaps are
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NOTE 5: DEBT (Continued)

tied to LIBOR. Equity collars have been entered into in conjunction with equity swaps to limit the
magnitude of any gains or losses on the equity swaps.

December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average

Rate Rate

Notional Notional
Amount Maturities Receive Pay Amount Maturities Receive Pay

Variable to fixed . . . . . . . . . . $ — — —% —% $155 1999 5.16% 6.24%
Cross-currency . . . . . . . . . . . 133 2001 — 6.51 204 1999-2001 — 6.55
Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,140 2001 — 6.41 — — — —

At December 31, 1999, deferred credits of $7 and deferred charges of $49 on closed forward contracts
are included as part of the carrying value of the underlying debt. The deferred credits and charges are
recognized as yield adjustments over the life of the debt that matures at various dates through 2043.

In the event we are owed money under the swap agreements, we could be exposed to risk in the event
of nonperformance by counterparties. We manage this exposure by monitoring the credit standing of the
counterparties and establishing dollar and term limitations that correspond to the respective credit rating
of each counterparty. As of December 31, 1999, we do not believe that we have any exposure to any
individual counterparty.

NOTE 6: FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values of cash equivalents and current amounts receivable and payable approximate carrying
values due to their short-term nature.

The fair values of interest rate, total return and cross-currency swaps are based on estimated amounts
we would receive or pay to terminate such agreements allowing for current interest/foreign exchange rates,
market price of Global Crossing common shares and creditworthiness of the counterparties.

The fair values of long-term debt are based on quoted market prices where available or, if not
available, based on discounting future cash flows using current interest rates. Fair value of equity
investments is based on market prices quoted by stock exchanges.

December 31,

1999 1998

Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Debt (includes short-term portion) . . . . . . . $13,071 $12,112 $9,919 $10,342
Swap agreements—liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . — (36) — 24
Equity swaps/collars . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (56) (56) — —
Equity investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 868 1,234 — —
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NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock. Prior to the Separation, Old U S WEST had two separate classes of outstanding
common stock; U S WEST Communications Group common stock (the ‘‘Communications Stock’’) and
U S WEST Media Group common stock (the ‘‘Media Stock’’). In conjunction with the Separation, on
June 12, 1998, Old U S WEST redeemed each issued and outstanding share of Communications Stock
(other than shares of Communications Stock held as treasury stock) for one share of U S WEST common
stock. Each share of Communications Stock held as treasury stock by Old U S WEST was cancelled. For
presentation purposes, Communications Stock shares outstanding prior to June 12, 1998 are shown as
U S WEST shares.

Dividends. We declared dividends of $2.36 and $2.14 per share of common stock during 1999 and
1998, respectively. Prior to the Separation date, we paid dividends monthly to Old U S WEST based on
Dex’s net income adjusted for the amortization of intangibles.

Other Comprehensive Income. Components of other comprehensive income consist of the following:

1999

Unrealized gains on marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 366
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (144)

Other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 222

Unrealized gains on marketable securities include reclassification adjustments of $454 pertaining to
net realized losses from the sale of securities. The income tax expense includes net reclassification
adjustments of $176 related to the sale of securities.

Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan (‘‘LESOP’’). Prior to the Separation, we participated in
the defined contribution savings plan sponsored by Old U S WEST (the ‘‘Old U S WEST Savings Plan’’)
which covered substantially all employees. Old U S WEST matched a percentage of the eligible employee
contributions with shares of Communications Stock and/or Media Stock in accordance with participant
elections. Old U S WEST maintained a LESOP to provide shares of common stock for matching
contributions. During 1998, prior to the Separation, the outstanding debt of the LESOP which was used to
acquire common stock, was fully paid down. Contributions to the LESOP as well as dividends on
unallocated shares of common stock held by the LESOP were used for debt service.

In connection with the Separation, the unallocated shares in the LESOP as of June 12, 1998, were
split between us and MediaOne. We received 342,814 and 196,014 shares of U S WEST and MediaOne
common stock, respectively. We sold the MediaOne common stock in the open market, the proceeds of
which were used to acquire shares of our common stock for matching contributions. As of December 31,
1999, all of such unallocated shares received by us from the LESOP had been allocated to participant
accounts.

As a result of the Separation, we assumed sponsorship of the Old U S WEST Savings Plan which
covers substantially all our employees (the ‘‘U S WEST Savings Plan’’), and MediaOne adopted a new plan
(‘‘MediaOne Savings Plan’’), covering eligible employees of MediaOne. Existing account balances of such
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NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)

MediaOne employees were transferred from the Old U S WEST Savings Plan to the MediaOne Savings
Plan.

As of October 1998, we had utilized all the unallocated shares of the LESOP for purposes of making
matching contributions. Through this time period, we recognized contribution expense based upon the
cash payments method as specified in SOP 76-3, ‘‘Accounting Practices for Certain Employee Stock
Ownership Plans.’’

Subsequent to October 1998, for the remainder of 1998, we made $14 of cash contributions to the
U S WEST Savings Plan, which utilized the cash to purchase shares of common stock in the open market.
Compensation expense for this period was equal to our cash contributions. The following LESOP
information applies to the time period contributions were accounted for under SOP 76-3.

Year Ended
December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Benefit expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $84 $74
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 3 6

Total expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $87 $80

Dividends for debt service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $ 1 $ 3

Stockholders’ Rights Plan. Our board of directors has adopted a stockholders’ rights plan which, in
the event of a takeover attempt, would entitle existing stockholders to certain preferential rights. These
rights expire on June 1, 2008 and are redeemable by us at any time prior to the date they become effective.

NOTE 8: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Certain of the financial effects of the Separation and the Dex Alignment, including interest expense
associated with the refinancing of the Dex Indebtedness and the dilutive effects of the Dex Dividend, are
not reflected in the historical consolidated statements of income prior to the Separation. As a result,
earnings per share for 1998 are presented on both a pro forma and historical basis. The pro forma earnings
per share amounts give effect to the Dex Indebtedness and the issuance of approximately 16,341,000 shares
(net of the redemption of 305,000 fractional shares) of common stock in connection with the Dex
Alignment as if such transactions had been consummated as of January 1, 1998.

The following reflects the computation of diluted earnings per share on a historical basis for 1999,
1998 and 1997 and basic and diluted earnings per share for 1998 on a pro forma basis. Income and earnings
per share are before an extraordinary item and the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.
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NOTE 8: EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The earnings per share amounts presented on the consolidated statements of income may not foot due to
rounding of individual components.

Year Ended December 31,

Historical Diluted Earnings Per Share 1999 1998 1997

(shares in thousands)

Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,102 $ 1,508 $ 1,527
Interest on convertible zero coupon subordinated

notes, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 9

Income used for diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . $ 1,102 $ 1,508 $ 1,536

Basic weighted average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 504,423 494,395 482,751
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,883 4,403 2,386
Convertible zero coupon subordinated notes . . . . . . — — 6,095

Diluted weighted average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 509,306 498,798 491,232

Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.16 $ 3.02 $ 3.13

Year Ended
Pro forma Basic Earnings Per Share December 31, 1998

(shares in thousands)

Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,508
Pro forma adjustment(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (72)

Pro forma income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,436

Basic weighted average shares(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 494,395
Pro forma adjustment(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,432

Pro forma basic weighted average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 501,827

Pro forma basic earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.86
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Year Ended
Pro Forma Diluted Earnings Per Share December 31, 1998

(shares in thousands)

Pro forma income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,436

Basic weighted average shares(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 494,395
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,403
Pro forma adjustment(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,432

Pro forma diluted weighted average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 506,230

Pro forma diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.84

(1) Reflects incremental (after-tax) interest expense associated with the Dex Indebtedness from the beginning of the year through
the Separation.

(2) Historical average shares assume a one-for-one conversion of historical Communications Stock outstanding into shares of
U S WEST as of the Separation.

(3) Reflects the issuance of approximately 16,341,000 shares of common stock (net of the redemption of approximately 305,000
fractional shares) issued in connection with the Dex Alignment as if the shares had been issued at the beginning of the year.

NOTE 9: STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

We maintain stock incentive plans for employees and nonemployees, primarily members of the board
of directors. The 1998 U S WEST Stock Plan (the ‘‘Plan’’), under which we may grant awards in the form
of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and phantom units, as well as substitute stock
options and restricted stock awards, was approved by stockholders on June 12, 1998, in connection with the
Separation. The Plan is a successor plan to the Amended 1994 Stock Plan (the ‘‘Predecessor Plan’’), under
which shares of Communications Stock were previously issued. No further grants may be made under the
Predecessor Plan.

Effective June 12, 1998, each outstanding Communications Group stock option was converted into
one U S WEST stock option, whether held by U S WEST or MediaOne employees. Each option granted
under the Plan has the same terms, conditions, exercise price, vesting and restrictions as the Communica-
tions Group stock awards it replaced.

Under the Plan, a maximum of 4.8 million shares could be granted in 1998. Thereafter, the maximum
aggregate number of shares of stock granted in any calendar year for all purposes under the Plan is one
percent (1.00%) of the shares outstanding (excluding shares held in our treasury) on the first day of such
year. For 1999, a maximum of 5.0 million shares could be granted. In the event that fewer than the full
aggregate number of shares available for issuance in any year are issued in any calendar year, the shares
not issued shall be added to the shares available for issuance in any subsequent year or years. The options’
exercise price is equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Options
granted vest over periods up to five years and may be exercised no later than 10 years after the grant date.

In June 1999, the U S WEST board of directors approved the 1999 U S WEST Stock Plan for Non-
Executives. Under this plan, we may grant awards in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
common stock, restricted common stock and phantom units. A total of 12 million shares were registered.
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FAS No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ requires the fair value of stock options to
be calculated using an option pricing model. We have elected the ‘‘pro forma, disclosure only’’ option
permitted under FAS No. 123, instead of recording a charge to operations, as shown below:

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Net income:
As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,342 $1,508 $1,524
Adjusted for FAS No. 123 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,293 1,479 1,511

Earnings per share:
As reported—basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.66 $ 3.05 $ 3.16
As reported—diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.63 3.02 3.12
Adjusted for FAS No. 123—basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.56 2.99 3.13
Adjusted for FAS No. 123—diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.54 2.97 3.10

Because the FAS No. 123 method of accounting has not been applied to options granted prior to
January 1, 1995, the pro forma compensation cost may not represent that expected in future years.

Following are the weighted-average assumptions used with the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to
estimate the fair value of options granted during 1999, 1998 and 1997:

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.6% 5.5% 6.4%
Expected dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.0% 4.2% 5.8%
Expected option life (years) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.0 4.0 4.0
Expected stock price volatility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.0% 22.9% 25.0%
Weighted average grant date fair value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $27.87 $ 8.75 $ 5.70

The expected dividend yield for the 1999 assumptions was primarily based upon the proposed merger
with Qwest Communications International Inc. (‘‘Qwest’’) and the dividend policy following the close of
the Qwest merger as stipulated in the Agreement and Plan of Merger between U S WEST and Qwest (the
‘‘Merger Agreement’’). According to the Merger Agreement, the combined company will pay initial
quarterly dividends of $0.0125 per share. However, we may change our dividend policy before the merger.

Information on outstanding options is summarized as follows (shares in thousands):
Number of Weighted Avg.

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding January 1, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,413 $26.67
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,492 34.87
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,649) 25.41
Canceled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (637) 27.54

Outstanding December 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,619 31.23
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,589 50.81
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,480) 23.03
Canceled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (700) 36.99

Outstanding December 31, 1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,028 38.45
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,569 53.96
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,010) 32.20
Canceled or expired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,189) 40.43

Outstanding December 31, 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,398 $44.14
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NOTE 9: STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

The outstanding options at December 31, 1999, have the following characteristics (shares in
thousands):

Outstanding Options Excercisable Options

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price

$0.00 - $33.25 . . . . . . . . . 9,747,164 6.33 $26.64 8,630,916 $29.56
$33.63 - $51.31 . . . . . . . . 8,715,254 7.84 45.13 4,315,642 43.43
$51.38 - $54.31 . . . . . . . . 9,758,454 9.38 53.54 96,400 52.58
$54.38 - $72.63 . . . . . . . . 4,177,142 9.29 60.94 92,488 58.56

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,398,014 8.04 $44.14 13,135,446 $34.49

Options to purchase 5,924,251 and 5,299,955 shares of common stock at weighted-average exercise
prices of $30.15 and $25.72 were exercisable at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Approximately 8 million shares of common stock were available for grant at December 31, 1999.
Approximately 32 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance at December 31, 1999.

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension, Postretirement and Other Post Employment Benefits

We have a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the ‘‘Pension Plan’’) for substantially all
management and occupational employees and postretirement healthcare and life insurance plans for
retirees. We also provide post employment benefits for certain former employees.

Prior to the Separation, we participated in the defined benefit pension plan and postretirement
healthcare and life insurance plans sponsored by Old U S WEST. Accordingly, our financial statements for
periods prior to the Separation reflect an allocation of costs from Old U S WEST for its employees and
retirees while they were included in Old U S WEST’s plans.

On June 12, 1998, we assumed sponsorship of the Old U S WEST pension plan and MediaOne
established a new defined benefit pension plan for eligible MediaOne employees (the ‘‘MediaOne Pension
Plan’’). In connection with the Separation, a portion of the existing assets of the Old U S WEST pension
plan were transferred at fair value to the MediaOne Pension Plan such that the ratio of plan assets to plan
liabilities, calculated on a projected benefit obligation basis as determined by independent actuaries, was
the same for the Pension Plan and the MediaOne Pension Plan. The pension benefit obligation and plan
assets transferred to the MediaOne Pension Plan at June 12, 1998 were approximately $150 and $200,
respectively.

In addition, on June 12, 1998, the three funded retiree medical and life insurance benefits trusts,
maintained by Old U S WEST under an employee welfare benefit program for its employees, were split
between us and MediaOne. One of the trusts covered hourly employees only and was transferred in its
entirety to us. The remaining two trusts were transferred to us, and MediaOne established new trusts. A
portion of the assets of the latter two trusts was transferred to MediaOne’s trusts based upon the same
methodology used to transfer assets of the Pension Plan to the MediaOne Pension Plan, except that the
liabilities were calculated by independent actuaries using the accumulated postretirement benefit obliga-
tion method. The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and plan assets transferred to
MediaOne’s trusts at June 12, 1998 were approximately $20 and $5, respectively.
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NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Pension benefits for management employees are based upon their salary and years of service while
occupational employee benefits are based upon job classification and years of service. Pension and
postretirement costs are recognized over the period in which the employee renders services and becomes
eligible to receive benefits as determined by using the projected unit credit method. Our funding policy is
to make contributions with the objective of accumulating sufficient assets to pay all benefits when due. No
pension funding was required in 1999, 1998 or 1997.

Since plan assets for pension and postretirement benefits were not historically segregated into
separate accounts or restricted to providing benefits to employees of U S WEST, assets of the plan were
used to provide benefits to employees of both U S WEST and MediaOne. Therefore, the following pension
and postretirement benefits plan information for periods prior to June 12, 1998, reflects the pension cost
(credit), postretirement benefit cost, benefit obligation, assets and funded status of the Old U S WEST
plans.

The portion of the pension credit applicable to U S WEST was $33 in 1997. The components of the
pension credit are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Details of pension cost (credit):
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 203 $ 189 $ 176
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 658 639 625
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (935) (852) (759)
Amortization of transition asset . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (79) (79) (80)
Amortization of prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2 2

Net pension credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(151) $(101) $ (36)

The portion of the postretirement benefit cost applicable to U S WEST was $179 in 1997. The
components of the postretirement benefit cost are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Details of postretirement benefit cost:
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 70 $ 72 $ 66
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326 319 296
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (229) (213) (174)
Amortization of prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 19 19
Recognized actuarial gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28) (30) (28)

Total postretirement benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 159 $ 167 $ 179

Since plan assets for pension and postretirement benefits were not historically segregated into
separate accounts or restricted to providing benefits to employees of U S WEST, assets of the plan were
used to provide benefits to employees of both U S WEST and MediaOne. Therefore, the following pension
and postretirement benefit plan information for periods prior to June 12, 1998, reflects the benefit
obligation, assets and funded status of the Old U S WEST plans.
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NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Following is a reconciliation of the benefit obligation for the pension and postretirement plans:
Postretirement

Pension Benefits

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

1999 1998 1999 1998

Benefit obligation at beginning of year . . . . . . . $ 9,622 $9,167 $4,825 $4,406
Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 203 189 70 72
Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 658 639 326 319
Actuarial (gain) loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (884) 499 (690) 297
Plan amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 4 (105)
Divestitures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (224) — (23)
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (722) (648) (191) (141)
Benefit obligation at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,877 $9,622 $4,344 $4,825

Following is a reconciliation of the change in the fair value of plan assets for the pension and
postretirement plans:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

1999 1998 1999 1998

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . . $12,925 $12,260 $2,604 $2,413
Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,509 1,579 575 264
Employer contributions/(withdrawals) . . . . . . . — — (212) 18
Divestitures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8) (212) (1) (4)
Section 420 transfer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (111) (54) 111 54
Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (722) (648) (191) (141)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year . . . . . . $14,593 $12,925 $2,886 $2,604

In December 1999 and 1998, under provisions of section 420 of the Internal Revenue Code, $111 and
$54, respectively, of pension assets were transferred to the postretirement benefit plan to pay for current
year retiree health care benefits. In 1999, $230 of Life Insurance and Welfare Trust assets were transferred
to the Company to pay for employee welfare benefits.

The following table represents the funded status of the pension and postretirement plans:
Postretirement

Pension Benefits

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

1999 1998 1999 1998

Funded (unfunded) status . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,716 $ 3,303 $(1,458) $(2,221)
Unrecognized net actuarial gain . . . . . . . . . . (4,640) (2,195) (1,479) (482)
Unamortized prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4 125 140
Balance of unrecognized transition asset . . . . (387) (466) — —
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 691 $ 646 $(2,812) $(2,563)
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NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used to account for the plans are as follows:

Postretirement
Pension Benefits

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

1999 1998 1999 1998

Weighted-average discount rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.00% 6.75% 8.00% 6.75%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets* 9.40% 8.80% 9.40% 8.80%
Weighted-average rate of compensation increase . 4.65% 4.65% N/A N/A

* The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for the pension and postretirement plans was 8.5% for 1997.

For measurement purposes, an 8% annual rate of increase in the healthcare cost trend rate for 1999 is
assumed. The healthcare cost trend rate is assumed to gradually decline to an ultimate rate of 5% in 2011.

A 1% change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would have had the following effects in 1999:

One-Percent Change

Increase Decrease

Effect on the aggregate of the service and interest cost
components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost . . . . . . . $ 53 $ (43)

Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation . . . . . . . . 557 (464)

In October 1998, the Communications Workers of America voting members (who are our employees),
ratified new three-year contracts. These contracts provide for both salary increases of 10.9% and pension
increases totaling 21% over three years. These benefit changes are reflected in the above calculations.

We provide other post employment benefits, such as worker’s compensation and disability to former
or inactive employees who are not eligible for retirement.

NOTE 11: INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Federal:
Current . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $530 $685 $798
Deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 171 103 (10)
Investment tax credits—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15) (13) (16)

686 775 772
State and local:

Current . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45 108 119
Deferred . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69 28 11

114 136 130
Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $800 $911 $902
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NOTE 11: INCOME TAXES (Continued)

We paid $472, $678 and $906 for income taxes in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
The effective tax rate differs from the statutory tax rate as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

1999 1998 1997

(in percent)

Federal statutory tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0 35.0 35.0
Investment tax credit amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.5) (0.4) (0.4)
State income taxes—net of federal effect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.9 3.7 3.5
Terminated merger-related charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.2 — —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.5) (0.6) (1.0)

Effective tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42.1 37.7 37.1

The components of the net deferred tax liability are as follows:
December 31,

1999 1998

Property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,966 $1,633
State deferred taxes—net of federal effect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 266 205
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128 —
Deferred directory costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 137 —
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 40

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,524 1,878

Postretirement benefits, net of pension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 776 701
Unamortized investment tax credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 56
State deferred taxes—net of federal effect . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151 135
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396 351

Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,379 1,243

Net deferred tax liability . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,145 $ 635

NOTE 12: SEGMENT INFORMATION

We operate in four segments: retail services, wholesale services, network services and directory
services. The retail services segment provides local telephone services, long-distance services, wireless
services and data services. The wholesale services segment provides exchange access services that connect
customers to the facilities of interexchange carriers and interconnection to our telecommunications
network to competitive local exchange carriers. Our network services segment provides access to our
telecommunications network, including our information technologies, primarily to our retail services and
wholesale services segments. The directory services segment publishes White and Yellow Pages telephone
directories and provides electronic directory and other information services. We provide our services to
more than 25 million residential and business customers in Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota,
Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and
Wyoming.
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NOTE 12: SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Following is a breakout of our segments. Because significant expenses of operating the retail services
and wholesale services segments are not allocated to the segments for decision making purposes,
management does not believe the segment margins are representative of the actual operating results of the
segments. The margin for the retail services and wholesale services segments excludes network and
corporate expenses. The margin for the network services segment and the directory services segment
excludes corporate expenses. The ‘‘other’’ category includes our corporate expenses. The communications
and related services column represents a total of the retail services, wholesale services and network
services segments. As a result of regulatory actions and changes in internal reporting, the classification of
certain operating revenues and expenses has changed during 1999, 1998 and 1997. It has not been
practicable to restate 1997 results to conform to the current year’s presentation. Accordingly, the operating
revenues and margins may not be comparable for each year.

Total
Communications

Retail Wholesale Network and Related Directory Reconciling Consolidated
Services Services Services Services Services Other Items Total

1999
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,022 $ 2,871 $ 242 $ 12,135 $1,446 $ — $ (399)(1) $ 13,182
Margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,111 2,157 (2,793) 5,475 741 (116) (4,198) 1,902 (2)

Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (3) — (3) — (3) — (3) 819 — (3) 22,397 (3) 23,216
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . 587 (4) 111 3,473 4,171 48 (1) — 4,218

1998
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,556 2,590 214 11,360 1,277 — (242)(1) 12,395
Margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,194 1,908 (2,776) 5,326 657 (234) (3,330) 2,419 (2)

Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (3) — (3) — (3) — (3) 524 — (3) 17,883 (3) 18,407
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . 362 (4) — 2,376 2,738 42 125 — 2,905

1997
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,893 2,609 163 10,665 1,190 — (334)(1) 11,521
Margin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,940 2,176 (2,738) 5,378 615 (396) (3,168) 2,429 (2)

Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (3) — (3) — (3) — (3) 516 — (3) 17,151 (3) 17,667
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . 340 (4) — 2,214 2,554 29 89 — 2,672

(1) Represents primarily intersegment charges. The 1997 amount also includes $230 of regulatory charges, primarily attributable to
the state of Washington.

(2) Represents income before income taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. Adjust-
ments that are made to the total of the segments’ income in order to arrive at income before income taxes, extraordinary item
and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle include the following:

Year Ended
December 31,

1999 1998 1997

Costs and adjustments to reconcile segment data to the consolidated total:
Terminated merger-related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 282 $ — $ —
Loss on sale of Global Crossing common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 367 — —
Decline in market value of derivative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 — —
Separation costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 94 —
Asset impairment charge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 35 —
Regulatory charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 230
Other expense—net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 730 630 347
Taxes other than income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396 372 428
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,367 2,199 2,163

$4,198 $3,330 $3,168
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NOTE 12: SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(3) A breakout of assets for all segments is not provided to our chief operating decision maker. The reconciling items column

represents the amount to reconcile to the consolidated total.
(4) Capital expenditures reported for the retail services segment include only expenditures for wireless services and certain data

services. Additional capital expenditures relating to these services are included in network services capital expenditures.

In addition to the operating revenues disclosed above, intersegment operating revenues of the retail
services segment were $87, $28 and $30 for 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Intersegment operating
revenues of the network services segment were $60, $70 and $64 for 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
Intersegment operating revenues of the directory services segment were $10, $10 and $6 for 1999, 1998 and
1997, respectively.

Significant Concentrations. At December 31, 1999, we had 58,272 employees, of which 46,352 are
employees of U S WEST Communications, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary (‘‘USWC’’) and 3,787 are
employees of Dex. Approximately 74% of USWC employees and 62% of Dex employees are represented
by unions.

NOTE 13: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Bell Communications Research, Inc. (‘‘Bellcore’’). Charges relating to research, development and
maintenance of existing technologies performed by Bellcore, in which we had a one-seventh ownership
interest, were $118 in 1997.

In 1997, we sold our interest in Bellcore. We received cash proceeds of $65 and recorded an after-tax
gain of $32. Bellcore, now named Telcordia, continues to provide research and development and other
services to us on a contract basis.

NOTE 14: MERGER AGREEMENTS
In May 1999, we entered into an agreement to merge with Global Crossing. In connection with the

Global Crossing merger agreement, in June 1999, we completed a cash tender offer for approximately
39 million shares of Global Crossing common stock at a price of $62.75 per share for an aggregate
purchase price of $2,464.

In July 1999, we entered into an agreement to merge with Qwest. Under the terms of the merger
agreement, Qwest will issue shares of its common stock having a value of $69.00 for each share of our
common stock, subject to a ‘‘collar’’ on Qwest’s Average Price (as defined below) between $28.26 and
$39.90 per share. The exchange ratio, and accordingly, the number of Qwest shares to be issued for each
U S WEST share will be determined by dividing $69.00 by the average of the volume weighted averages of
the trading prices of Qwest common stock for the 15 trading days randomly selected by lot, by Qwest and
us together from the 30 consecutive trading days ending on the third trading day preceding the closing of
the transaction (the ‘‘Average Price’’). If Qwest’s Average Price is less than $28.26, the exchange ratio will
be 2.44161. If Qwest’s Average Price is greater than $39.90, the exchange ratio will be 1.72932.

The obligation, if necessary, under the ‘‘collar’’ may be satisfied in whole or in part with cash if
Qwest’s Average Price is below $38.70 per share. In determining the cash amount for the ‘‘collar,’’ Qwest
and our Company will consider Qwest’s desire to reduce dilution to its stockholders, our desire to provide
a cash element to our stockholders and both companies’ desire to maintain the merged company’s strong
financial condition. We may terminate the merger agreement if the closing price of Qwest’s shares is below
$22.00 for 20 consecutive trading days before the closing, or if the Average Price of Qwest shares during
the measurement period is less than $22.00. The Boards of Directors of both Qwest and our Company and
their and our stockholders approved the proposed merger. The merger is subject to federal and state
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NOTE 14: MERGER AGREEMENTS (Continued)

regulatory approvals without significant conditions and other customary closing conditions. Closing of the
merger is expected by mid-2000.

In connection with the Qwest/U S WEST merger, our Company and Global Crossing agreed to
terminate the merger agreement between us. In consideration for terminating the merger agreement, we
paid Global Crossing $140 in cash and 2,231,076 shares that we previously purchased in the open market of
Global Crossing common stock valued at $140. Qwest provided us a $140 loan to pay for the cash portion
of the termination fee. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 0.15% and is due December 31, 2001. If our
merger with Qwest is terminated because we change our recommendation for the merger, we will be
obligated to repay $70 in cash to Qwest and we will receive from Qwest 1,115,538 shares of Global
Crossing common stock or the market value in cash at the time of the termination. If termination is not
caused by our changing our recommendation, Qwest will not receive reimbursement for its $140 loan and
will have to deliver to us the same number of shares of Global Crossing common stock delivered to Global
Crossing by us or pay us the market value in cash at the time of the termination. In December 1999, we
sold 24 million shares of Global Crossing common stock resulting in a pre-tax loss of $367.

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

We have entered into an agreement with Olympic Properties of the United States to sponsor the 2002
Salt Lake City Winter Olympics and the U.S. Olympic Teams through 2004. As of December 31, 1999, we
have a remaining commitment of $48 to be paid in a combination of cash and services through 2004.

Contingencies

Regulatory Contingencies. On May 1, 1996, the Oregon Public Utilities Commission (‘‘OPUC’’)
approved a stipulation terminating prematurely USWC’s alternative form of regulation (‘‘AFOR’’) plan
and it then undertook a review of USWC’s earnings. In May 1997, the OPUC ordered USWC to reduce its
annual revenues by $97, effective May 1, 1997, and to issue a one-time refund, including interest, of
approximately $102 to reflect the revenue reduction for the period May 1, 1996 through April 30, 1997.
This one-time refund for interim rates became subject to refund when USWC’s AFOR plan was
terminated on May 1, 1996.

USWC filed an appeal of the order and asked for an immediate stay of the refund with the Oregon
Circuit Court which granted USWC’s request for a stay, pending a full review of the OPUC’s order. On
February 19, 1998, the Oregon Circuit Court entered a judgment in USWC’s favor on most of the appealed
issues. The OPUC appealed to the Oregon Court of Appeals on March 19, 1998. In light of the settlement
discussed below, the appellate court remanded the matter back to the OPUC.

On September 9, 1999, USWC and the OPUC staff reached a tentative settlement agreement whereby
USWC would refund approximately $247 and provide ongoing rate reductions of $63. A hearing on the
propriety of the proposed settlement was held by the OPUC, and that agency is expected to issue its
decision sometime during March, 2000. We have reserved for the proposed refunds.

In December 1999, the Colorado Public Utilities Commission decided to fine USWC $13 for
violations of service quality rules between January 1998 and April 1999, although a written order has not
yet been issued. USWC has reserved for this fine.
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NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

USWC has pending regulatory actions in local regulatory jurisdictions which call for price decreases,
refunds or both. These actions are generally routine and incidental to USWC’s business. USWC will
continue to monitor and evaluate the risks associated with its local regulatory jurisdictions.

Other Contingencies. In 1999, twelve complaints were filed against us and our directors in the
following jurisdictions: California Superior Court, Los Angeles County (1); New York Supreme Court,
New York County (1); Colorado District Court, City and County of Denver (2); Delaware Court of
Chancery (8). These actions are purported class actions brought on behalf of all persons, other than the
defendants, who own our common stock against us and our directors. Each of the complaints makes
substantially similar allegations that the defendants breached their fiduciary duties to the class members by
refusing to seek all bona fide offers for the Company and refusing to consider the Qwest proposal,
resulting in the stockholders being prevented from maximizing the value of their common stock. The
complaints seek various injunctive and monetary relief, including orders: a) requiring defendants to act in
accordance with their fiduciary duties by considering any bona fide proposal which would maximize
stockholder value; b) requiring the directors to undertake an evaluation of our Company as a merger/
acquisition candidate and take steps to enhance that value and create an active auction for our Company;
c) preventing defendants from using a stockholder rights plan to impede any bona fide offer for our
Company; d) enjoining the consummation of the then proposed Global Crossing-U S WEST merger until
all alternatives are explored; e) requiring defendants to account for all damages suffered by plaintiffs as a
result of defendants’ actions with respect to the tender offer for the shares of Global Crossing common
stock by us and the then proposed Global Crossing-U S WEST merger; and f) requiring defendants to pay
damages to plaintiffs. We intend to vigorously defend these actions.

On October 1, 1999, a Fifth Amended Class Action Complaint was filed against U S WEST and
USWC purportedly on behalf of 220,000 customers in the State of Colorado. The complaint alleges, inter
alia, that from 1993 to the present, U S WEST and USWC, in violation of alleged statutory and common
law obligations, willfully delayed the provision of local telephone service to the purported class members.
In addition, the complaint alleges that U S WEST and USWC misrepresented the date on which such local
telephone service was to be provided to the purported class members. The complaint seeks compensatory
damages for purported class members, disgorgement of profits and punitive damages. U S WEST and
USWC intend to vigorously defend this action.

The New Mexico Public Regulatory Commission has ordered an interim rate reduction of $29, but the
Commission stayed the implementation of its order. Permanent resolution of this matter is expected during
2000.

We are subject to other legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Although there can be no assurance of the ultimate disposition of these matters, it is management’s
opinion, based upon the information available at this time, that the expected outcome, individually or in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial
position.
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NOTE 16: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Quarterly Financial Data

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

1999
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,168 $3,227 $3,296 $3,491
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 634 406 136 166
Earnings per share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.78 0.81 0.27 0.80
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.78 0.80 0.27 0.79

1998
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,015 $3,057 $3,114 $3,209
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 434 327 379 368
Pro forma net income(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 393 296 379 368
Earnings per share:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.89 0.67 0.76 0.73
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.89 0.67 0.75 0.73
Pro forma basic(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.78 0.59 N/A N/A
Pro forma diluted(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.78 0.59 N/A N/A

(1) 1998 first and second quarter include pro forma adjustments for the assumption of indebtedness and the issuance of shares in
connection with the alignment of the directory business with New U S WEST, as if the Separation had been consummated as of
the beginning of the year.

1999 quarterly data has been restated to give effect for the change in accounting principle associated with Dex’s change to the
‘‘point of publication’’ method. See Note 2. 1999 first quarter net income includes the cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle of $240 ($0.47 per diluted share). 1999 third quarter net income includes terminated merger-related expenses of $282 ($0.56
per diluted share). 1999 fourth quarter net income includes the loss on the sale of 24 million shares of Global Crossing common stock
of $367 ($0.44 per diluted share) and decline in the market value of derivative financial instruments of $56 ($0.07 per diluted share).

1998 second quarter net income includes Separation expenses of $68 ($0.13 per diluted share) and a $21 ($0.04 per diluted
share) charge related to the impairment of certain long-lived assets associated with our video operations.

Market Price

Per Share Market and Dividend Data High Low Close Dividends

1999
First quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $65.6250 $53.3125 $55.0625 $0.5350
Second quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62.2500 51.5625 58.7500 0.7500
Third quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.2500 51.7500 57.0625 0.5350
Fourth quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73.0000 57.0000 72.0000 0.5350

1998
First quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $56.3125 $45.3750 $54.6250 $0.5350
Second quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57.4375 46.8125 46.8125 0.5350
Third quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54.9375 48.4375 52.5000 0.5350
Fourth quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65.0000 51.8750 64.6250 0.5350

Per share market and dividend data prior to June 12, 1998 represents data of Communications Stock.
Per share market and dividend data as of and subsequent to June 12, 1998 represents data of U S WEST.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To U S WEST, Inc.:

We have audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the consolidated financial
statements included in U S WEST, Inc.’s (the ‘‘Company’’) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated January 26, 2000 appearing on page
F-1. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on those statements taken as a whole.
The schedule appearing on page F-3

F-30

1 of this Form 10-K is the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment and is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
is not part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states, in all material
respects, the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Denver, Colorado,
January 26, 2000.
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Balance at Charged Balance
Beginning to at End of
of Period Expense Deductions Period

Allowance for uncollectibles:
1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $69 $158 $139(a) $88
1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72 141 144(a) 69
1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60 126 114(a) 72

(a) Represents credit losses written off during the period, less collection of amounts previously written off.

Balance at Charged Balance
Beginning to at End of
of Period Expense Deductions Period

Allowance for obsolete inventory:
1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6 $8 $4 $10
1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 1 3 6
1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 2 1 8



abcde

WSTNC-10K-00


